
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Joint 
Transportation 

Board 
Councillor B Garden (Chairman) 

Mrs A Allen (Vice-Chairman) 
Mr D Butler -Rhule 

Mrs P Cole 
Mr J Kite MBE 
Mr P Harman 

Mr J Ozog 
 

Councillor S P Butterfill 
Councillor K J Grehan 

Councillor Mrs J A Ozog 
Councillor L J Reynolds 

Councillor R J Wells 
 

Parish representatives – Stephanie Threadgle and Yvonne 
Seymour 

 
A meeting of the above Board will be held on 

 
Tuesday 3 March 2020 

 
at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 

 
Managing Director 
24 February 2020 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

 
JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD  

AGENDA 
 

Tuesday 3 March 2020 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence.   

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any). 
 

 

3. To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Dartford Joint 
Transportation Board held on 3 December 2019.  

(Pages 1 - 6) 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

5. References from other Committees (if any)   

 

6. Matters Arising  (Pages 7 - 12) 

KCC 

 This report advises Members on the progress of matters arising at 
previous meetings of the Board. 
 

 

7. Chairman's Update   

 

 The Chairman will update the Board on  
 

a) The progress to date on the Govia Thameslink station 
improvement projects. 

 
b) The future of bus routes 428 and 492, following the Transport 

for London consultation. 
 

c) The Cabinet’s response to the reference made at the last JTB 
meeting relating to parking issues across the Borough. 
 

Additionally the Chairman has requested further information from 
Kent County Council on the following points: 
 

 Could repeater signs on longer stretches of roads with a 20mph 

 



 

speed restriction (such as Common Lane, Wilmington) be 
introduced? 

 

 Could Wilmington be considered as a prospective 20mph Pilot 
Scheme throughout the Parish? 

 

 Is there a follow-up enforcement process following implementation 
of weight restrictions especially when introduced as a safety 
measure around schools? 

 

 Will Kent Highways Services commit to additional signage around 
schools where a weight restriction applies? and, 
 

 Is there scope for better use of Parish Councils, through the Clerks, 
as a communication link between Kent Highway Services and the 
community?   

 

8. Fastrack  (Pages 13 - 
62) 

 

 Mr Hymers will be reporting on aspects of performance and future 
developments of the system. 
 

 

9. Highways England   

 

 Mr Thomas Whittingham the M25 route sponsor will be in attendance 
to report on local improvements and take questions from Board 
Members.   
 

 

10. Members Enquiry Items   

 

 Members have the opportunity to raise  the following: - 
 

 Questions in relation to capital and revenue funded works 
programmes 

 Suggestions for future traffic regulation orders or street 
management proposals 

 Questions on policies, plans and strategies related to 
highways, road traffic and public transport. 

 Suggestion of a future agenda item (subject to the Chairman’s 
approval) 

 

 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

11. Joint Transportation Board : Constitutional Matters  (Pages 63 - 
70) 

 

 Members are asked to note that the new Joint Transportation Board 
Agreement with Kent County Council has been approved by the 

 



 

General Assembly of the Council on 13 January 2020. 
 
In addition it was agreed that Parish representation on the Board 
should be increased to two Parish Council Members. 
 
A copy of the Agreement, which has yet to be formally adopted by 
Kent County Council, is attached for information.  
 

12. Road Works in the Borough of Dartford  (Pages 71 - 
88) 

 

 Members will be advised of the roadworks which were currently being 
undertaken or expected within the Borough. 
 

 

13. KCC - Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee  (Pages 89 - 
110) 

 

 For Members information the following has been attached for 
Members information: - 
 
 Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee – Minutes  

  
  
NB: If a Member wishes to discuss any of these items at the meeting, 
please advise the Member Services Section (01322) 343251 prior to 
the meeting. 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Joint Transportation Board held on Tuesday 3 
December 2019 at 7.00 pm 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALSO 
PRESENT 
 
 

Councillor B Garden (Chairman) 
Mrs A Allen (Vice-Chairman) 
Mrs P Cole 
Mr P Harman 
Mr J Ozog 
 
Councillor K J Grehan 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog 
Councillor L J Reynolds 
Councillor R J Wells 
 
 
Councillor Mrs R Currans, Councillor M Davis (DBC) Ms E Green 
and Ms D Sutton (KCC Highways) Mr K Longley (DBC) Ms 
Threadgle and Seymour (Parish Council Representatives) 
 

 
30. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Mr Kite. 
 
The Chairman, Councillor Garden, welcomed all Board members, observers 
and members of the public to the meeting, together with Ms Threadgle and 
Ms Seymour – parish councillors - who were attending their first Board 
meeting. 
 
Councillor Garden explained that following the election for the vacant parish 
representative position on the Board, two candidates - Ms Threadgle and Ms 
Seymour – each received four votes.   
 
It is to be suggested to Cabinet that both are invited to join the Board for the 
remainder of the Municipal year, and accordingly both nominees had been 
invited to attend this meeting. 
 

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest received from Board Members or 
observers. 
 

32. TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DARTFORD 
JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD HELD ON 3 SEPTEMBER 2019.  
 
That the minutes of the Joint Transportation Board held on 3 September 2019 
be confirmed as a correct record of that meeting. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 3 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 

2 

33. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman announced that that he had agreed to allow Councillor Davis to 
present a petition on an urgent road safety issue to the Board. 
 
Councillor Davis reported that residents of Burnham Crescent and Shirley 
Close were concerned that illegal parking on pavements in the area was 
necessitating pedestrians to walk in the road and obstructing sight lines for 
cars entering and leaving Burnham Crescent. 
 
Arising from this Councillor Davis reported that he had contacted KCC 
Highways regarding the installation of street furniture and vegetation, to curtail 
the illegal parking.  He added that these works had been undertaken and that 
the issues had largely been addressed. 
 
The Board therefore noted the petition and the successful remedial works 
undertaken.  
 

34. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
It was confirmed that there were no references from other Committees for the 
Board to consider. 
 

35. MATTERS ARISING  
 
Members received a report providing up to date information on a number of 
issues outstanding from previous meetings. 
 
Arising from this it was noted that Mr Hymers was not present and therefore 
not able to update Members on a number of issues, but would be providing a 
written report to the next meeting. 
 
Additionally Councillor Grehan reported that Highways England had 
responded to her enquiry relating to road safety on trunk roads and had 
explained that the statistics she had been given were in fact misleading and 
the roads in the Borough were not amongst the most dangerous in the UK. 
 

36. PROJECT PROGRESS UPDATE:  DARTFORD TOWN CENTRE  
 
Members were reminded that at the Board meeting held on 3 September they 
had received a presentation on the first phase of the Dartford Town Centre 
redevelopment programme, and that due to time constraints a report on the 
later phases was deferred to this meeting. 
 
Accordingly Mr Keith Longley provided  
 

 A brief progress report on the further progress attained on phase one 
of the scheme,  

 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 3 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 

3 

 The proposed rephrasing of traffic signalling to aid the through flow of 
traffic around the Town Centre 

 

 A report on the content and progress of phase two of the 
redevelopment including information on delays to progress and 
subsequent amendment to the original scheme proposals relating to 
traffic flows 

 

 An outline of future phases of the works together with a projected 
timescale for works. 

 
Members raised queries relating to minor scheme details and the programme 
of works for each of the scheme phases.   
 
Arising from this Mr Longley reported that the work programme was currently 
being amended but undertook to circulate to all Members an updated 
programme of works which would enable Board Members to answer 
questions raised by constituents, when the review was completed. 
 

37. LOCAL WINTER SERVICE PLAN: DARTFORD  
 
The Board received and noted a report from Kent Highways on their proposed 
responses to inclement winter weather for the Dartford area. 
 
While the report was limited to the Dartford area it was reported that details 
for the whole County was available for inspection on the KCC Web site. 
 

38. PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS CHASTILIAN ROAD AND 
WENTWORTH DRIVE, DARTFORD, KENT.  
 
The Board received a report from KCC Highways relating to the proposed 
introduction of waiting restrictions in Chastillian Road and Wentworth Drive to 
relieve issues with parking arising from the recent expansion of Wentworth 
Primary school. 
 
It was noted that there had been extensive consultation with local residents on 
the format of the restrictions and that those currently proposed represent the 
most acceptable to local residents. 
 
The Board agreed to endorse the introduction of the proposals  
 

39. PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS FLEET ESTATE, DARTFORD, 
KENT.  
 
The Board received a report from KCC Highways relating to the proposed 
introduction of waiting restrictions within the Fleet Estate to relieve issues with 
parking arising from the proximity of Darent Valley Hospital and other local 
employers. 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 3 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 

4 

It was noted that the restrictions related mainly to corner and junction 
protection to improve sight lines and safety for pedestrians and this would be 
reinforced by the introduction of dropped kerbs in the future.    
 
The Board agreed to endorse the introduction of the proposals  
 

40. PARKING ENFORCEMENT  
 
Arising from the consideration of items 38 and 39 above Members expressed 
deep concern at issues relating to illegal parking in Dartford generally, and 
that surrounding local schools specifically. 
 
It was noted that the current resources of the enforcement team are limited 
and demands are high but it was felt that unless higher levels of enforcement 
are undertaken then parking problems are going to worsen and inevitable 
traffic accidents will occur. 
 
The Board therefore agreed 
 

1. That a request be referred to the Cabinet that numbers within the 
parking enforcement team are increased to a level where it presents a 
significant deterrent to illegal, dangerous and inconsiderate parking. 

 
2. The Transport Planning Officer be commissioned to undertake a 

research project into the parking problems in Dartford and the 
introduction of measures to ameliorate these, including research into 
strategies employed by other authorities to achieve this.  

 
41. MEMBERS ENQUIRY ITEMS  

 
Members raised the following points: 
 
Mrs Allen: 
 
Highlighted the need for co - operation between Dartford and KCC in the 
ongoing battle against fly tipping in the Borough 
 
Stressed that Members should follow the correct procedure when reporting 
emergency highways issues, as attempting to speed responses by contacting 
high level County Officers was counter – productive. 
 
Mr Harman: 
 
Reported an on - going issue with the vandalisation of street lights in 
Greenhithe  
 
Highlighted safety issues in country lanes in Swanscombe 
 
Mrs Cole: 
 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 3 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 

5 

Enquired about planting bordering Bob Dunn Way.  
 

In response Ms Sutton reported that this will be undertaken in the early 
part of 2020. 

 
Asked the Chairman if he had received any information on the proposals for 
the future of the 428/492 bus routes. 
 

The Chairman responded that there had been a large response to the 
consultation and that the decisions relating to the routes had been 
pushed back into next year by TfL.  He also pointed out that several 
schools were concerned about the possible stranding of pupils should 
routes be withdrawn or curtailed. 

 
Councillor Reynolds:  
 
Asked if “Emergency” road works were monitored as his recent experience 
with Thames Water indicated that utility companies were misusing this to gain 
access to the highway when works did not justify this classification. 
 

Ms Sutton suggested that he contact the KCC Street Works team to 
inquire about this matter. 

 
Mr Ozog: 
 
Raised the issue of parking enforcement generally and around Holy Trinity 
School in particular. 
 
Asked if the drains in Dartford Road could be unblocked as during the recent 
heavy rainfall they were unable to deal with the quantities of water in the area. 
 
Sought clarification on signage for on street and off street parking in Kent 
Road as the signs seemed to be contradictory. 
 
Councillor Mrs Ozog: 
 
Enquired at the possibility of “Corner Protection” for Priory Close as it was 
impossible for large vehicles to enter this road due to dangerous parking on 
the street corners. 
 

42. ROAD WORKS IN THE BOROUGH OF DARTFORD  
 
The Board received a report from KCC Highways which updated Members on 
roadworks which were to be undertaken or proposed to take place in Dartford. 
 
Arising from this it was noted that there was a slight delay in the 
commencement of work on the proposed Cycleway on Princes Road Dartford 
which would now commence early in 2020. 
 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

TUESDAY 3 DECEMBER 2019 
 
 

6 

43. KCC - ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE: 
MEETINGS 16 JULY AND 10 OCTOBER 2019  
 
The Board received and noted the Minutes of the KCC Environment & 
Transport Cabinet Committee held on 16 July and 10 October 2019. 
 

44. CHAIRMAN'S GREETING  
 
As this was the last meeting of the Board before the Christmas Holiday, the 
Chairman, Councillor Garden, extended his best wishes for Christmas and the 
New Year to all Board Members, Officers and attendees at the Board.  
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.47 pm 
 
 Councillor Brian Garden  

 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
3 March 2020 

 
MATTERS ARISING 

 

1. Summary 

 
 

1.1 This report advises Members on the progress of matters arising at previous 
 meetings of the Board. 

  
2.  RECOMMENDATION 

 
2.1  That Members note the comments in the “Update/Outcome” column of the 

Appendix A to this report 
 

 
 
3 Background and Discussion 
 
3.1 Previously, the Joint Transportation Board requested that a report on 

matters arising be placed on future agendas of this Board. 
 
3.2 The matters arising are as detailed in the Appendix A to this report. 
 
3.3 A verbal update, where applicable, will be given at the meeting of this 

Board. 
 

4    Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
Not applicable 
 

5. Appendices 
 
Appendix A:  Matters Arising 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 
None  
 

Contact Officers :  As detailed in the Appendix to this report                       

Contact Number: 

 
KCC Highways & Transportation      08458 247 800 
 
Dartford Borough Council  01322 343251 
 

 
 

Page 7 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Dartford Joint Transportation Board   
 

3 March 2020 
 

 Action Current Situation Update / Outcome Responsible Officer Due Date 

1 Fast Track – Future Developments  A twice yearly update to 
be made to the Board. 

KCC Officers may wish 
to update Members 
verbally at the 
meeting. 

Shane Hymers March 2020 

2 14. Parking Issues Ingress Park  Yellow lines are to be 
installed by Crest 
Nicholson however the 
issue of enforcement 
and the necessary 
TRO are still to be 
resolved 

Principal Transport 
Planner 

 

3 15. Misuse of Busways by Motorists  A verbal update has 
been received on the 
trial and a full report is 
to be presented in due 
course. 

Shane Hymers March 2020 

4 16. Traffic Congestion arising from the 
Dartford Crossing 

Thomas Whittingham of 
Highways England to be 
present at 3 March 
meeting 

This is still an ongoing 
issue and Highways 
England have been 
invited to further 
meeting to report on 
issues 

 March 2020 

5 17. Pedestrian Safety Fastrack Routes  Mr Hymers has 
undertaken to 
investigate this and 
report back as part of 
his usual update report 
on Fastrack. 

Shane Hymers March 2020 

6 18. Increased Pavement Provision for 
A225 Dartford Road at Sutton at 
Hone and Hawley 

The implementation of 
the scheme has been 
halted as more pressing 
issues have emerged 
that have greater 
priority. 

The Board considered 
a request for better 
footway provision, and 
were advised that a 
costed proposal from 
the relevant KCC 

  

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 6



Dartford Joint Transportation Board   
 

3 March 2020 
 

 Action Current Situation Update / Outcome Responsible Officer Due Date 

Member would be 
considered favourably 
by KCC. 

7 19. Dropped Kerbs / Amendments to 
TRO 

A report on this was to 
be presented to the 
Cabinet but the lack of 
a suitably qualified 
Officer has delayed 
matters. 

This matter was 
discussed at the 
December 2018 
meeting and a report 
was to be put to 
Cabinet on proposals. 

Principal Transport 
Planner 

 

8 20. Parking Issues Reference presented to 
Cabinet on 23 January 
2020 

A reference was made 
to Cabinet seeking a 
study on parking 
matters and an 
increase in the 
enforcement team 
numbers.  

The Chairman will 
update Members on 
this issue 

March 2020 

9 21. Future of Bus Routes 429/492  Due to the scale of 
responses received the 
decision on the routes 
future has been 
deferred until later in 
2020. 

JTB / DBC has 
submitted comments 
on proposals to curtail 
these routes and a 
decision from TfL was 
expected in late 
December 2019. 

Chairman  

10. 22. Drainage Dartford Road  Mr Ozog asked if 
drains could be jetted 
to allow surface water 
to drain away more 
effectively 

  

11. 23. Signage: Kent Road Car Parking  Mr Ozog highlighted 
apparent contradiction 
in signage at this site 

  

12. 24.      

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 6



Dartford Joint Transportation Board   
 

3 March 2020 
 

 Action Current Situation Update / Outcome Responsible Officer Due Date 

Closed Items  Issues removed from the Report since the last meeting: 
Town Centre Redevelopment: Update on Traffic Issues 
Brent Primary School: Closure of Drop Off Point 
Safety Issues on Borough Trunk Roads 
Parish Representative on JTB 
New Agreement on Joint Transportation Boards 

 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



 

 
 
 
From:  Shane Hymers – Fastrack Development Manager - KCC 

To:  Dartford Joint Transportation Board 03/03/2020 

Subject: Fastrack Update 

Classification: Unrestricted  

Summary:  

The purpose of this paper is to update on the current status of Fastrack and seek board support 

for two items (2,3). 

 

1. Performance & General Update 

I will be in attendance to provide the board with a verbal update on Fastrack and narrative on the 
latest performance statistics for Fastrack B. Appendix F1 

The verbal update will include: 

 Bean Road Tunnel latest 

  Proposed Fastrack autonomous shuttle trial  

  Mobility as a Service (Southeastern/Arriva/KCC Partnership) 

  Electric Buses 

 TfL services  

2. Fastrack Busway Enforcement 

I will present the case for busway enforcement on Fastrack and request board support prior to 
seeking KCC Cabinet approval. Attached is the example of the framework that underpinned the 
Tunbridge Wells trial in 2013. I am pursuing a similar arrangement. Appendix F2 & F3 

3. Modal Hierarchy at Signals 

The Fastrack Advisory Board recently gave approval for me to seek JTB ratification for 
implementing a modal hierarchy at traffic signals on the Fastrack network.  

 I will be joined by Oliver Monahan (Managing Director – Arriva) in requesting that the board 
approves priority for Fastrack buses at all signals across the network.   

When Fastrack was first introduced, the buses would approach green signals. Over the years, 
this level of priority has noticeably declined, and services are now held at numerous junctions for 
unviable lengths of time. There is a direct correlation between journey times & patronage. Whilst 
this may have a negligible impact on wider traffic at peak times, to achieve its objective of 
unlocking local development opportunities without gridlock, Fastrack must provide a more 
attractive alternative to the private car and be perceived as cure not cause. Furthermore, by 

Page 13 Agenda Item 8

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=9ALWlrzr&id=6E875A465EF8148446F01DC70F5D4786BA895C79&thid=OIP.9ALWlrzrd1wwAEDMkUARhQHaC4&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fupload.wikimedia.org%2fwikipedia%2fen%2fthumb%2fa%2fa9%2fArrivaFastrack.svg%2f1280px-ArrivaFastrack.svg.png&exph=498&expw=1280&q=fastrack+logo&simid=608019213676315373&selectedIndex=11


increasing continuous movement and reducing dwell time, the prospect of a fully electrified bus 
operation, becomes more viable, furthering its positive air quality credentials. 

The request is that both Fastrack services in each direction, approach each light as a green, so 
long as they are at least three minutes apart (A,A  / B,B / A,B / B,A). This will also serve to 
discourage ‘bus bunching’. Some remedial works to signals and infrastructure will be required, 
including moving a few flags and shelters further away from junctions, as not to incorrectly trigger 
the signals when buses are stopping at bus stops. 

4. Fastrack User Survey (Pt1 On-Bus CSS) 

Oliver & I will talk through the findings of the attached Fastrack survey, take questions, and update 
the board on subsequent actions and next steps. Appendix F4 

5. Latest Full Network Map (rev 3 Jan 2020) 

 

Ends. 

 
 

Page 14Agenda Item 8



Fastrack B Operational & Infrastructure Performance Review 

August September October November December January February March April May June July

KPI Service Standards
Method of 

measurement
KPI Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 

1
% Scheduled Mileage 

Operated (Loss Milage) 

Monthly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

97.50% 97.06% 96.82% 97.36% 97.08% 97.34%

2
% Mileage operated 

excluding traffic delays

Monthly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

99% 98.85% 98.49% 99.02% 99.10% 99.50%

3

Service Timekeeping 

(Timing point. Inc end 

point) 

Monthly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

95% 77.18% 78.77% 78.47% 79.46% 81.90%

4
% of buses operating on 

time (Starting point?)

Monthly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

83.57% 86.54% 86.27% 85.78% 84.29%

5
Number of passenger 

journeys 

Monthly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

122,840 136,333 141,848 144,686 132,020

6
% of journey operated 

wirh branded vehicles 

Monthly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

7
No of Complaints 

Reliability

Quarterly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

6 1 7 7 10

8
No of Complaints 

DRIVERS

Quarterly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

9 4 6 6 5

9
No of complaints 

VEHICLES 

Quarterly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

1 1 0 0 0

10 No of complaints FARES

Quarterly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

2 2 0 0 0

11 Total No of Complaints 

Quarterly performance 

report via validated 

provider information

18 8 13 13 15

2019 2020

Data provided previously 

Contractal data request 

Passenger comment and complaints statistics 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 16



KPI
Service 

Standards

Method 

of 

measure

ment

Stretch 

Target
Green Amber Red

1
Mileage 

Operated

Monthly 

performa

nce 

report via 

validated 

provider 

informati

on

N/A 97.50%
90.1%  to 

97.4
90.00%

2

Mileage 

operated 

excluding 

traffic 

delays

Monthly 

performa

nce 

report via 

validated 

provider 

informati

on

n/a 99.00%
98.1% to 

98.9%
98.00%

3

Service 

Timekeepi

ng

Monthly 

performa

nce 

report via 

validated 

provider 

informati

on

n/a 95.00%
80.1% to 

94.9%
80%

Performance Threshold

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 18



 

Immediate actions      
Action Workstream Owner Date Comments Status 

Performance dashboard for your review and approval 
KPI KCC 

29-
Aug   

Updated and circulated 1 week prior to the next meeting – October 
2020 KPI ASC 

01-
Oct   

Screens at Bluewater to be updated to reflect the new timetable (in the 
bus reception area) Timetables  KCC 

01-
Oct   

Meeting to discuss infrastructure with KCC and Dennis – October 2020 
infrastructure  KCC/ASC 

01-
Oct   

Customer survey to be included in the agenda going forward  
Meeting  KCC 

01-
Oct   

Marketing to be invited to the next performance meeting  
Meeting  ASC 

01-
Oct   

Email from KCC after review of the completed vehicle 
Vehicle  KCC 

29-
Aug   

Invite to the next Fast Track working Group to be sent to ASC  
Meeting  KCC 

29-
Aug   

Ex-Fastrack vehicles de branding plan to action  Vehicles  ASC 
30-
Nov   

      

      
 

 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 20



Page 21 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Page 23 Agenda Item 8



Page 24Agenda Item 8



Page 25 Agenda Item 8



Page 26Agenda Item 8



Page 27 Agenda Item 8



Page 28Agenda Item 8



Page 29 Agenda Item 8



Page 30Agenda Item 8



Page 31 Agenda Item 8



Page 32Agenda Item 8



Page 33 Agenda Item 8



Page 34Agenda Item 8



Page 35 Agenda Item 8



Page 36Agenda Item 8



Page 37 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



This report complies with ISO:20252 standards 

and other relevant forms of conduct

Fastrack On-Bus Engagement –

Joint Transportation Board                                 

Prepared by Lake Market Research with Shane Hymers KCC

March 2020

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 8



Fastrack Engagement – Research Overview

2

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

• 325 interviews completed at 10 bus hubs selected by Fastrack team (7 minute survey).

• Interviewer shifts were conducted across weekdays / weekends / early mornings and evenings 

as applicable. Shifts were determined based on estimated peak travel periods.  

CUSTOMER ORIGIN DESTINATION SURVEY

• Passengers were asked to complete origin destination information for journey together with 

profiling information whilst on bus.

• Interviewer shifts were conducted across a pre-determined Thursday, Saturday and Sunday on 

each route to cover the two buses each hour between the hours of 6.30am and 10pm.

CATCHMENT AREA HOUSEHOLD SURVEY

• Residents within a 500m catchment of the Fastrack 

A and B service interviewed in home, capturing 

feedback from users, non users and lapsed users. 

• 642 interviews completed across catchment area.

FASTRACK DRIVER SURVEY

• Anonymous online survey to capture 

feedback on service delivery. 

• Lake visit to depot to speak to drivers 

first hand.

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8



3

GENDER 

PROFILE

All 

interviewed

INTERVIEWED AT…

Darent Valley 

(30)

Bluewater 

(64)    

Dartford Home 

Gardens      

(23)

Temple Hill                     

(43)               

Ebbsfleet 

station 

(19)

Greenhithe 

station                    

(31)

Bridge 

residential   

(89)

Garrick 

Street 

(26)

Male 37% 50% 27% 26% 30% 47% 42% 44% 27%

Female 63% 50% 73% 74% 70% 53% 58% 56% 73%

Customer gender and age profile

• Demographic variances across stop interviewed and should be considered when interpreting. 

• Gender variances at town centre / shopping locations. Age variances at Bridge are important 

to consider when viewing satisfaction scores.  

AGE 

PROFILE

All 

interviewed

INTERVIEWED AT…

Darent Valley 

(30)

Bluewater 

(64)    

Dartford Home 

Gardens (23)

Temple 

Hill                     

(43)

Ebbsfleet 

station 

(19)

Greenhithe 

station                    

(31)

Bridge 

residential   

(89)

Garrick 

Street 

(26)

16-24 15% 0% 17% 26% 9% 32% 23% 9% 19%

25-34 23% 10% 22% 17% 16% 32% 19% 35% 19%

35-54 25% 30% 14% 13% 28% 21% 13% 42% 23%

55 & over 36% 60% 47% 43% 47% 16% 45% 15% 35%

Note - (Numbers in brackets = base size)

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



4

Customer working status profile

• 325 interviews completed at 10 bus hubs selected by Fastrack team

• Interviewer shifts were conducted across weekdays / weekends / early mornings and 

evenings as applicable. Shifts were determined based on estimated peak travel periods.  

WORKING 

STATUS 

PROFILE

All 

interviewed

INTERVIEWED AT…

Darent Valley 

(30)

Bluewater 

(64)    

Dartford 

Home Gardens 

(23)

Temple 

Hill                     

(43)

Ebbsfleet 

station 

(19)

Greenhithe 

station                    

(31)

Bridge 

residential    

(89)

Garrick 

Street 

(26)

Employed 51% 40% 48% 22% 33% 74% 58% 67% 42%

Unemployed 3% 7% 3% 4% 5% 0% 3% 3% 0%

Homemaker / 

carer
10% 0% 3% 9% 14% 0% 0% 19% 15%

Retired 26% 33% 36% 35% 40% 16% 32% 8% 23%

Student 6% 0% 9% 22% 5% 11% 6% 3% 8%

Something 

else
4% 20% 0% 9% 5% 0% 0% 0% 12%

Note - (Numbers in brackets = base size)

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8



Every day

18%

Every weekday

10%

5 - 6 times a 

week

9%

3 - 4 times a 

week

19%

1 - 2 times a 

week

16%

Less than once a week, 

but at least once a 

month

14%

Less than once a month

14%

Frequency of using Fastrack service

5Q2. How often do you use the Fastrack service? 

% Net – use 5 or more times a week

All interviewed 36%

Male (119) 37%

Female (206) 36%

Aged 16-24 (47) 51%

Aged 25-34 (76) 43%

Aged 35-54 (84) 37%

Aged 55-64 (117) 26%

Darent Valley (30) 17%

Bluewater (64) 27%

Dartford Home Gardens (23) 39%

Temple Hill (43) 30%

Ebbsfleet station (19) 37%

Greenhithe station (31) 35%

Bridge residential (89) 51%

Garrick Street (26) 42%

Significantly higher % compared to other subgroups

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

• Varying frequencies of use recorded; over a third use the 

service five times or more a week.

• Frequency of use is highest amongst those aged 16-24 

and interviewed at Bridge residential and Garrick Street.  

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 8



Overall satisfaction with Fastrack service (1)

6Q3. Thinking about your journeys on the Fastrack service over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

6%

8%

4%

11%

7%

3%

9%

12%

4%

4%

26%

24%

27%

30%

22%

37%

18%

25%

28%

21%

17%

32%

33%

32%

38%

32%

31%

32%

35%

31%

42%

27%

37%

35%

37%

32%

36%

25%

47%

30%

29%

33%

52%

All interviewed

Male (119)

Female (206)

Aged 16-24 (47)

Aged 25-34 (76)

Aged 35-54 (84)

Aged 55 & over (117)

Employed full / part time (165)

Employed full time (108)

Employed part time (57)

Retired (84)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

Average

7.4

7.3

7.5

7.6

7.2

6.9

8.0

7.1

6.9

7.5

8.1

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

• 69% rate their satisfaction as between seven and ten. The average score is 7.4.

• The proportion of nine to ten ratings is strong but could be improved considering 

brand objectives.  

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 8



Overall satisfaction with Fastrack service (2)

7Q3. Thinking about your journeys on the Fastrack service over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

6%

12%

3%

1%

3%

4%

2%

5%

13%

4%

26%

34%

21%

20%

17%

20%

13%

33%

11%

6%

44%

19%

32%

25%

39%

33%

17%

30%

39%

37%

47%

29%

30%

42%

37%

29%

37%

46%

67%

47%

43%

28%

37%

65%

12%

35%

All interviewed

Use Fastrack - 5 times a week or more (118)

Use Fastrack - At least once a week (117)

Use Fastrack - Less than once a week (89)

Interview location - Darent Valley (30)

Interview location - Bluewater  (64)

Interview location - Dartford Home Gardens (23)

Interview location - Temple Hill (43)

Interview location - Ebbsfleet Station (19)

Interview location - Greenhithe Station  (30)

Interview location - Bridge residential  (89)

Interview location - Garrick Street (26)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

7.4

6.7

7.7

8.1

8.7

8.0

7.9

7.2

7.7

8.7

6.0

7.8

• Satisfaction ratings are lower on average amongst frequent users of the service.

• Satisfaction ratings are lower amongst those interviewed at Bridge residential and 

Temple Hill.  Average

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 8



41%

20%

8%

6%

3%

3%

3%

2%

2%

2%

1%

1%

10%

4%

Nothing / the service meets my needs

Punctuality / to be on time

More frequent / regular services

Fewer delays / cancellations /  greater reliability

More polite / considerate / helpful drivers

More accurate / updated information at bus stops

Less bunching of buses / several buses arriving at the same time

Held up due to traffic / contingency plans

Cheaper / lower fares

Better service / more buses in the evenings / at night

Improved Sunday service

Faster times / routes

Don't know

Other

Suggested changes to improve the Fastrack service - Unprompted

8Q5. What, if any, changes would you make to improve the Fastrack service? 

• 41% noted that nothing needs to change with the service.

• Punctuality was the most common suggestion put forward, followed by more frequent services.  

A higher proportion of customers 

interviewed at…

•Bridge residential mentioned 

more frequent services (19%).

•Garrick Street mentioned fewer 

delays / cancellations (15%).

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 8



4%

4%

8%

7%

10%

7%

9%

13%

10%

12%

13%

31%

33%

27%

33%

32%

42%

30%

33%

35%

30%

43%

64%

62%

64%

59%

58%

51%

60%

53%

53%

57%

43%

Ease of getting on & off the bus

Cleanliness & condition of inside of bus

Your personal safety on the bus

Safety of driving

Cleanliness & condition of outside of bus

Distance of bus stops to destination/connecting transport

Level of crowding inside bus

Greeting / welcome received from drivers

Helpfulness & attitude of drivers

Availability of seating & space to stand

Distance of bus stops from journey start

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

Average

Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Strong scores, little subgroup variance

9Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

8.7

8.6

8.6

8.5

8.4

8.4

8.4

8.3

8.3

8.3

8.1

• Strong satisfaction scores observed for bus condition, ease of travel and driver experience.

• Very little subgroup variation in scores (demographic / use frequency / location).  

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 8



2%

1%

3%

2%

4%

5%

6%

7%

14%

19%

18%

21%

22%

20%

17%

28%

40%

38%

39%

36%

35%

38%

42%

34%

44%

43%

40%

41%

39%

37%

35%

31%

Condition / standard of maintenance of bus stops

The hours of operation

Value for money

Timetable information provided in bus

Timetable information at bus stops

Frequency of the service

Punctuality of bus / turning up on time

Accuracy of information provided on real-time

passenger boards

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

Average

Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Strong scores, some subgroup variance

10Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

8.0

7.9

7.8

7.7

7.5

7.5

7.4

7.2

• Satisfaction scores observed for timetable information, punctuality and accuracy of real time 

information are less strong. 

• Satisfaction ratings are lower amongst those aged 35-54 and those employed.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 8



5%

8%

3%

9%

7%

7%

1%

8%

9%

5%

20%

18%

21%

23%

22%

26%

12%

21%

20%

21%

13%

38%

34%

40%

32%

37%

43%

38%

40%

39%

42%

37%

37%

40%

35%

36%

34%

24%

50%

32%

31%

32%

50%

All interviewed

Male (119)

Female (206)

Aged 16-24 (47)

Aged 25-34 (76)

Aged 35-54 (84)

Aged 55 & over (117)

Employed full / part time (165)

Employed full time (108)

Employed part time (57)

Retired (84)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Frequency of the service

11Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

7.5

7.5

7.6

7.3

7.4

6.9

8.2

7.2

7.2

7.3

8.2

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

Average

• Satisfaction scores for punctuality are lower across all demographics with the 

exception of those aged 55 & over. Scores are particularly low amongst those aged 35-

54 and those employed full time.

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 8



5%

10%

2%

2%

3%

7%

10%

8%

20%

27%

20%

10%

10%

14%

9%

19%

11%

6%

36%

23%

38%

32%

41%

42%

23%

39%

52%

51%

37%

26%

39%

31%

37%

31%

38%

46%

67%

44%

39%

23%

53%

68%

15%

38%

All interviewed

Use Fastrack - 5 times a week or more (118)

Use Fastrack - At least once a week (117)

Use Fastrack - Less than once a week (89)

Interview location - Darent Valley (30)

Interview location - Bluewater  (64)

Interview location - Dartford Home Gardens (23)

Interview location - Temple Hill (43)

Interview location - Ebbsfleet Station (19)

Interview location - Greenhithe Station  (30)

Interview location - Bridge residential  (89)

Interview location - Garrick Street (26)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Frequency of the service

12Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

7.5

6.9

7.7

8.3

8.6

8.0

8.2

7.3

8.0

8.7

6.4

7.4

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

Average
• Satisfaction scores are lower amongst frequent users of the service. Scores are also 

lower amongst those interviewed at Temple Hill, Bridge and Garrick Street.

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 8



Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Punctuality of bus / turning up on time

13

6%

8%

5%

11%

5%

11%

3%

10%

11%

7%

1%

17%

13%

19%

23%

17%

17%

15%

15%

19%

9%

17%

42%

45%

40%

36%

45%

44%

41%

42%

38%

49%

40%

35%

34%

35%

30%

33%

29%

42%

33%

32%

35%

42%

All interviewed

Male (119)

Female (206)

Aged 16-24 (47)

Aged 25-34 (76)

Aged 35-54 (84)

Aged 55 & over (117)

Employed full / part time (165)

Employed full time (108)

Employed part time (57)

Retired (84)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

7.4

7.4

7.4

7.0

7.4

7.0

7.9

7.2

7.0

7.6

7.9

Average

• Satisfaction scores for punctuality are lower across all demographic groups.

• Scores are particularly low amongst those aged 16-24, 35-54 and are employed full time.

Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8



Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Punctuality of bus / turning up on time

14

6%

13%

5%

6%

14%

9%

12%

17%

19%

21%

9%

7%

20%

17%

19%

16%

7%

17%

31%

42%

36%

43%

49%

30%

39%

57%

42%

37%

43%

52%

19%

35%

33%

31%

42%

63%

34%

26%

26%

47%

50%

22%

38%

All interviewed

Use Fastrack - 5 times a week or more (118)

Use Fastrack - At least once a week (117)

Use Fastrack - Less than once a week (89)

Interview location - Darent Valley (30)

Interview location - Bluewater  (64)

Interview location - Dartford Home Gardens (23)

Interview location - Temple Hill (43)

Interview location - Ebbsfleet Station (19)

Interview location - Greenhithe Station  (30)

Interview location - Bridge residential  (89)

Interview location - Garrick Street (26)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

7.4

7.0

7.4

8.1

8.7

7.4

7.8

6.9

7.9

8.3

7.0

6.7

Average

• Satisfaction scores are lower amongst frequent users of the service. Scores are also lower 

amongst those interviewed at Bluewater, Temple Hill, Bridge and Garrick Street.

Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 8



Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Accuracy of information provided on 

real-time passenger boards

15

7%

10%

5%

2%

8%

14%

2%

9%

13%

4%

1%

28%

27%

29%

35%

28%

29%

23%

29%

31%

26%

23%

34%

34%

34%

37%

38%

30%

34%

36%

35%

39%

32%

31%

28%

33%

26%

26%

27%

41%

25%

22%

32%

44%

All interviewed

Male (119)

Female (206)

Aged 16-24 (47)

Aged 25-34 (76)

Aged 35-54 (84)

Aged 55 & over (117)

Employed full / part time (165)

Employed full time (108)

Employed part time (57)

Retired (84)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

7.2

6.9

7.3

7.0

7.0

6.7

7.7

6.8

6.5

7.3

7.8

Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

Average

• Satisfaction scores for accuracy of real-time information are lower across all groups.

• Scores are lower amongst those aged 35-54 and are employed.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 8



Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Accuracy of information provided on 

real-time passenger boards

16

7%

11%

4%

3%

3%

10%

15%

10%

28%

32%

29%

22%

10%

36%

9%

38%

21%

3%

39%

20%

34%

30%

35%

40%

20%

27%

48%

38%

32%

48%

37%

25%

31%

27%

32%

35%

70%

34%

43%

14%

47%

48%

9%

45%

All interviewed

Use Fastrack - 5 times a week or more (118)

Use Fastrack - At least once a week (117)

Use Fastrack - Less than once a week (89)

Interview location - Darent Valley (30)

Interview location - Bluewater  (64)

Interview location - Dartford Home Gardens (23)

Interview location - Temple Hill (43)

Interview location - Ebbsfleet Station (19)

Interview location - Greenhithe Station  (30)

Interview location - Bridge residential  (89)

Interview location - Garrick Street (26)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

7.2

6.7

7.2

7.7

8.7

7.2

8.3

6.3

7.7

8.4

6.1

7.4

Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

Average

• Satisfaction scores are lower amongst frequent users of the service. Scores are also lower 

amongst those interviewed at Bluewater, Temple Hill, Bridge and Garrick Street.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 8



Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Value for money

17

3%

3%

3%

3%

4%

4%

2%

3%

4%

0%

0%

18%

14%

21%

22%

16%

26%

11%

22%

19%

27%

9%

39%

42%

36%

44%

42%

40%

32%

43%

47%

35%

33%

40%

41%

39%

31%

38%

30%

56%

33%

30%

38%

58%

All interviewed

Male (119)

Female (206)

Aged 16-24 (47)

Aged 25-34 (76)

Aged 35-54 (84)

Aged 55 & over (117)

Employed full / part time (165)

Employed full time (108)

Employed part time (57)

Retired (84)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

7.8

8.0

7.7

7.5

7.7

7.4

8.5

7.6

7.5

7.8

8.7

Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

Average

• Satisfaction scores for value for money are lower across the majority of demographic groups.

• Scores are lower amongst those aged 16-24, 35-54 and are employed full time.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 8



Fastrack Service Satisfaction – Value for money

18

3%

8%

2%

5%

13%

3%

8%

18%

24%

12%

18%

7%

32%

13%

22%

12%

4%

8%

33%

39%

32%

45%

38%

22%

32%

33%

35%

65%

42%

85%

29%

40%

36%

41%

44%

70%

32%

40%

41%

24%

54%

38%

All interviewed

Use Fastrack - 5 times a week or more (118)

Use Fastrack - At least once a week (117)

Use Fastrack - Less than once a week (89)

Interview location - Darent Valley (30)

Interview location - Bluewater  (64)

Interview location - Dartford Home Gardens (23)

Interview location - Temple Hill (43)

Interview location - Ebbsfleet Station (19)

Interview location - Greenhithe Station  (30)

Interview location - Bridge residential  (89)

Interview location - Garrick Street (26)

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

7.8

7.3

8.1

8.1

9.0

7.2

7.5

7.6

7.9

8.6

7.1

7.7

Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

Average

• Satisfaction scores are lower amongst frequent users of the service. Scores are also lower 

amongst those interviewed at Bluewater and Bridge.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 8



A focus on where Bridge residential scores are lower than average

19

13%

1%

8%

10%

15%

1%

1%

1%

44%

47%

8%

36%

39%

29%

30%

18%

17%

30%

45%

85%

39%

37%

55%

61%

54%

56%

12%

7%

15%

9%

15%

6%

28%

25%

Overall satisfaction with Fastrack service

Hours of operation

Value for money

Frequency of service

Accuracy of information provided on real-time

passenger boards

Condition / standard of maintenance of bus stops

Availability of seating or space to stand

Personal safety on bus

Level of crowding inside bus

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

Mean 

Score

7.4

7.9

7.8

7.5

7.2

8.0

8.3

8.6

8.4

9 - 10

37%

43%

40%

37%

31%

44%

57%

64%

60%

ALL INTERVIEWED

Mean 

Score

6.0

6.5

7.1

6.4

6.1

7.0

6.7

7.6

7.4

Response from Bridge Management bus stops only…

Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 8



A focus on where Temple Hill scores are lower than average

20Q8. Thinking about your journeys over the last year, how satisfied are you on a scale of 0 to 10…? 

2%

2%

2%

7%

7%

5%

10%

33%

12%

14%

21%

26%

19%

24%

39%

38%

37%

44%

71%

53%

55%

51%

40%

37%

38%

28%

42%

14%

23%

19%

23%

29%

20%

14%

Overall satisfaction with Fastrack service

Level of crowding in bus

Distance of bus stops from journey start

Condition / standard of maintenance of bus stops

Hours of operation

Frequency of the service

Timetable information provided at bus stops

Timetable information provided in bus

Accuracy of information provided at real-time

passenger information boards

0 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8 9 - 10

Mean 

Score

7.4

8.4

8.1

8.0

7.9

7.5

7.5

7.7

7.2

9 - 10

37%

60%

43%

44%

43%

37%

39%

41%

31%

ALL INTERVIEWED

Mean 

Score

7.2

8.0

7.6

7.4

7.4

7.3

7.0

6.9

6.3

Response from Temple Hill bus stops only…

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 8



33%

23%

14%

13%

13%

11%

11%

10%

7%

6%

5%

4%

1%

Nothing needs improving on the service

More reliable journey times

More buses per hour

Less congestion / traffic jams on route

Improved real-time information at bus stops

Improved timetable information at bus stops

More buses at evenings and weekends

A bus stop nearer my home

Faster journey times

Less road works on route

Extend the routes to other destinations

A smoother ride

Improved personal safety on bus

Suggested changes to improve the Fastrack service (prompted)

21Q9. In which, if any, of the following ways could the Fastrack service be improved?

• Suggested changes reflect satisfaction scores observed – more reliable journey times, more 

buses per hour, less congestion and improved information.

• Variance by interview location reflects satisfaction scores observed.  

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

A higher proportion of customers 

interviewed at…

• Garrick Street mentioned more 

reliable journey times (31%).

• Bluewater mentioned more reliable 

journey times (30%).

• Temple Hill mentioned improved real-

time information (21%) and improved 

timetable information (19%).

• Bridge residential mentioned more 

buses per hour (29%), improved 

timetable information (19%).

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8



43%

48%

41%

60%

75%

49%

12%

69%

76%

56%

8%

8%

9%

7%

6%

4%

13%

7%

7%

4%

12%

5%

49%

43%

52%

34%

21%

38%

81%

24%

20%

32%

87%

All interviewed

Male (119)

Female (206)

Aged 16-24 (47)

Aged 25-34 (76)

Aged 35-54 (84)

Aged 55 & over (117)

Employed full / part time (165)

Employed full time (108)

Employed part time (57)

Retired (84)

Yes, using my smartphone Yes, if I had a smartphone No

Use of Fastrack app for journey information and ticketing

22Q13. Would you use a Fastrack specific app on your phone for journey information and ticketing…? 

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

• Stated likelihood to use a Fastrack specific app is encouraging, particularly amongst 

those aged 16-34 and those are employed full time.

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 8



43%

59%

39%

28%

30%

33%

22%

28%

47%

52%

66%

38%

8%

8%

9%

6%

7%

4%

28%

11%

49%

33%

51%

66%

63%

67%

74%

44%

53%

48%

22%

62%

All interviewed

Use Fastrack - 5 times a week or more (118)

Use Fastrack - At least once a week (117)

Use Fastrack - Less than once a week (89)

Interview location - Darent Valley (30)

Interview location - Bluewater  (64)

Interview location - Dartford Home Gardens (23)

Interview location - Temple Hill (43)

Interview location - Ebbsfleet Station (19)

Interview location - Greenhithe Station  (30)

Interview location - Bridge residential  (89)

Interview location - Garrick Street (26)

Yes, using my smartphone Yes, if I had a smartphone No

Use of Fastrack app for journey information and ticketing

23

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

• Strong intention to use amongst those who regularly use the service.

• Response by stop suggests need as physical stop information is also important.

Q13. Would you use a Fastrack specific app on your phone for journey information and ticketing…? 

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 62



         Appendix A 
 
 

DATED (DAY/MONTH/YEAR) 

 
 
 

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

-and- 
 

THE DISTRICT/BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT ON 
JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARDS 

 
 
 

Legal & Secretariat 
Kent County Council 
County Hall 
Maidstone 
Kent ME14 1XQ 

 
File ref: 
Fax No: 01622 694402 
WP Ref: 
DX No: 
Tel: 
 
 

Page 63 Agenda Item 11



THIS DEED OF AGREEMENT is made the (day) of (month) two thousand and 
nineteen between THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall Maidstone Kent 
ME14 1XQ of the one part (hereinafter referred to as “KCC”) and (NAME OF 
DISTRICT/BOROUGH) of (address) (hereinafter referred to as the “Council”) of the 
other part. 
 
In this Agreement the words and expressions contained or referred to hereunder shall 
have the meaning thereby ascribed to them in the Second Schedule. The clause 
headings do not form part of this Agreement and shall not be taken in its construction 
or interpretation. 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. KCC and the Council are local authorities as defined by Section 270(1) of the 

1972 Act. 
 

2. By virtue of Section 1(2) of the 1972 Act KCC is the local highway authority for 
all the highways in the County of Kent whether or not maintainable at the public 
expense (and which are not highways for which the Secretary of State for 
Transport is the highway authority) and is by enactments also the traffic 
authority and street works authority. 

 
3. KCC and the Council have agreed to act together to continue with certain 

democratic arrangements previously established in relation to highway issues. 
 

4. This Agreement reflects the intention of KCC and the Council to co-operate 
regarding highway and transportation issues in the interests of the residents of 
Kent and supersedes that of the current agreement. 
 

 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
 
5. In this Agreement unless the context otherwise requires the following terms 

shall have the following meanings: 
 

“1972 Act”      : the Local Government Act 
1972 
 
“Agreement”      : these terms and conditions 
together         the First Schedule 
 
“Authorities”      : the Council and KCC 
 
“Council - local member”    : an elected member of the 
Council 
 
“JTB Members”     : KCC - local members and 
Council         - local members who 
have been          appointed to 
membership of the          JTB 

 

Page 64Agenda Item 11



“KCC – local member” :  the elected member for KCC’s 
   electoral divisions within 
the    Council’s 
administrative area 

 
 
  

Page 65 Agenda Item 11



COMMENCEMENT AND OPERATING TERM 
 
6. This Agreement shall commence on the effective date on the face hereof and 

shall continue until terminated by either party in writing in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
COUNCIL OBLIGATIONS 
 
7. The Council shall establish and maintain during the currency of this Agreement 

the arrangements for the Joint Transportation Board as set out in the First 
Schedule. 

 
KCC OBLIGATIONS 
 
8. KCC shall establish and maintain during the currency of this Agreement the 

arrangements for the Joint Transportation Board as set out in the First 
Schedule. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 

9. The parties acknowledge that amendments to the constitutions of KCC and/or 
the Council may result in the need for consequential changes to this 
Agreement. 

 
10. This Agreement shall be known as the JTB Agreement. 

 
11. Nothing in this Agreement shall create a legal partnership between the parties 

and save as may be specifically provided in this Agreement neither party shall 
be or hold itself out as or permit itself to be held out as :- 

 
a) the agent of the other; or 
b) entitled to pledge the credit of the other; or 
c) entitled to incur any other obligations or make any promise or representation 

on behalf of the other. 
 
REVIEW 
 
12. This Agreement shall be reviewed every four years or sooner at the instigation 

of both parties and amended by agreement between the parties if necessary, 
as a consequence of any review.   

 
13. This Agreement may be terminated by either party on six months written notice 

addressed to the relevant Council’s Chief Executive/KCC’s Corporate Director 
responsible for Highways and Transportation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 66Agenda Item 11



FIRST SCHEDULE 
 

Joint Transportation Boards 
 

1.1 A Joint Transportation Board (JTB) shall be established by the Authorities. 
 
1.2 Each Authority shall be responsible for its own costs incurred in the operation 

of the JTB. 
 
1.3 The JTB shall be a non-statutory advisory forum. 
 
Membership 
 
2.1 JTB membership shall comprise all KCC - local members with an equal number 

of Council - local members appointed by the Council. JTB Members will have 
voting rights. The Council may appoint substitutes for its JTB Members. 

 
2.2 The JTB shall agree a number of parish/town council representatives, not less 

than one and no greater than three from within the Council’s administrative 
area. Parish/town council representatives shall be nominated by the area 
committee of the Kent Association of Parish Councils or other representative 
body for parish/town councils within the Council’s administrative area if this 
provides a more complete representation. Substitute members may also be 
nominated.  Parish/town council representatives can speak on matters but don’t 
have voting rights nor can they propose motions and amendments. 

 
2.3 Any JTB Member may request of the Chairman an item to be considered for 

inclusion on the JTB agenda. Any Council- local member may attend and speak 
at a meeting of the JTB but may not vote nor propose a motion or an 
amendment.  

 
2.4 The Chairman of any parish/town council within the administrative area of the 

Council (or a parish/town councillor of that parish/town council nominated by 
him/her) may attend any meeting to speak with the permission of the Chairman 
on any item on the agenda of particular reference to that parish/town council. 

 
 
Chairman 
 
3 The Chairman and Vice Chairman shall alternate on an annual basis between 

a  KCC local member (who is a JTB Member) and a Council local member (who 
is a JTB Member). 

 
Meetings 
 
4.1 The JTB shall generally meet four times a year on dates and at times and 

venues to be specified by the Council in accordance with its normal 
constitutional arrangements in consultation with KCC.  

 

Page 67 Agenda Item 11



4.2 Six weeks prior to each JTB meeting the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and 
relevant officers from the Authorities will discuss and set the agenda for the 
forthcoming meeting. The final decision on agenda items shall be determined 
by the Chairman in consultation with the Vice Chairman. Agenda items will be 
split between Part A (recommendations for decision by KCC), Part B 
(recommendations for decisions by the Council) and ‘for information’ reports.  

 
4.3 The quorum for a JTB meeting shall be four comprising at least two voting KCC 

local- members and two Council – local members who are also JTB Members. 
 
4.4 Subject to the procedural rules in paragraphs 2, 3, 4.2 and 4.3 above taking 

precedence, the Council’s procedural rules shall apply to JTB meetings as if 
they were Council committees. 

 
4.5 The JTB will be clerked by an officer of the Council. Officers of the Authorities 

shall be expected to attend JTB meetings to present reports. 
 
4.6 At the discretion of the Chairman, members of the public may speak for a 

maximum of three minutes. The number of speakers will be at the discretion of 
the Chairman.  

 
4.7 The access to information principles shall be applied to the JTB as if it were a 

Council committee. 
 
4.8 The clerk shall produce minutes of the meeting, a copy of which shall be sent 

to KCC’s Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste. 
 
Terms of reference 
 
5.1 The role of the JTB is to advise the relevant Authority on highways and 

transportation works scheduled and completed. The JTB shall consider: 
 

i. capital and revenue funded works programmes; 
ii. traffic regulation orders; 
iii. street management proposals. 

 
5.2 The JTB may advise and recommend in relation to:  
 

i. strategic parking and waiting restriction issues; 
ii. petitions received in relation to parking and waiting restrictions; 
iii. Council street lighting schemes on highways; 
iv. local transport strategy.   

 
5.3 The JTB shall be a forum for consultation between the Authorities on policies, 

plans and strategies related to highways, road traffic and public transport. 
 
5.4 The JTB shall review the progress and out turn of works and business 

performance indicators. 
 

Page 68Agenda Item 11



5.5 The JTB shall receive reports on highways and transportation needs within the 
administrative area of the Council. 

 
Petition Discussions 
 
6.1 Where a petition is agreed as being appropriate for discussion at the JTB, it 

shall be received at a meeting of the JTB. No further discussion shall take place 
on the petition until the next meeting of the JTB. 

 
6.2 The lead petitioner shall be invited to submit a written statement of up to 500 

words which should be sent to the Council to arrive by 5pm one week prior to 
the next JTB meeting. At that meeting, the lead petitioner shall be invited to 
speak for no more than three minutes. 

 
6.3 The JTB shall not debate a petition on the same decision/issue as one 

debated in the previous twelve months.  
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 
7.1 The Authorities’ Overview and Scrutiny Committees or equivalent may invite the 

JTB Chairman or Vice Chairman to attend their meetings to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence. This is without prejudice 
to any ability of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees or equivalent of the 
Authorities to compel attendance of executive members and officers under 
Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000. 

 
Executive Action 
 
8.1 JTB advice/views shall be submitted to the Authorities’ Cabinet in accordance 

with the Authorities’ constitutional arrangements.  
 
EXECUTED as a DEED by KCC and the Council the day and year first before written 
 
THE COMMON SEAL of the KENT ) 
COUNTY COUNCIL was hereunto ) 
affixed in the presence of:- 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 
 
 
 
THE COMMON SEAL of DISTRICT/) 
BOROUGH COUNIL was hereunto ) 
affixed In the presence of:- 
 
 
 
Authorised Signatory 

Page 69 Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



To:              Dartford Joint Transportation Board  
 
By:              KCC Highways, Transportation & Waste 
 
Date:    3rd March 2020 
 
Subject:    Highway Forward Works Programme – 2019/20 onwards 
 
Classification:  Information Only  
 

 
Summary: This report updates Members on the identified schemes approved for construction 
 

 
1. Introduction  
 
This report provides an update and summarises schemes that have been programmed for delivery in 
2019/20. 
 
Kent County Council has agreed a substantial increase in the budget for planned highway works over 
the next three years, and as a result we are still in the process of identifying and designing schemes 
for inclusion in our full Year One to Two (2019/20 and 2020/21) and Year Three to Five (2021/22 to 
2023/24) programmes. Because of this, we have decided to publish an interim programme, and to 
publish the full programmes later this year.  For some assets this interim programme covers 
approximately the first six months of 2019/20, whilst for others it includes most of the works planned 
for the whole year. 
 
This programme is subject to regular review and may change for a number of reasons including 
budget allocation, contract rate changes, and to reflect KCC’s changing priorities. The programme and 
extent of individual sites within the programme may also be revised following engineering assessment 
during the design phase.  

 
Road, Footway & Cycleway Renewal and Preservation Schemes – see Appendix A 
  
Drainage Repairs & Improvements – see Appendix B 
 
Street Lighting – see Appendix C 
 
Transportation and Safety Schemes – see Appendix D 

 Casualty Reduction Measures 

 Local Growth Fund 
 

Developer Funded Works – see Appendix E 
 
Bridge Works – see Appendix F 
 
Traffic Systems – see Appendix G 
 
Combined Member Fund – see Appendix H 
 
Conclusion  
 
1. This report is for Members’ information. 
 
 

Page 71 Agenda Item 12



Contact Officers: 
 
The following contact officers can be contacted on 03000 418181 
  
Richard Emmett    Highway Manager West Kent 
Denise Sutton    Dartford District Manager 
Alan Casson                     Senior Asset Manager   
Earl Bourner       Drainage & Structures Asset Manager 
Sue Kinsella    Street Light Asset Manager 
Toby Butler    Traffic & Network Solutions Asset Manager 
Jamie Hare    Development Agreements Manager 
Jamie Watson                                   Schemes Programme Manager   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72Agenda Item 12



Appendix A – Road, Footway and Cycleway Renewal and Preservation Scheme 
 
The delivery of these schemes is weather dependent; should it prove not possible to carry out these 
works on the planned dates, new dates will be arranged and the residents will be informed by a letter 
drop to their homes. 
 
 

 
Machine Resurfacing – Contact Officer Mr Byron Lovell 

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status 

East Hill Dartford 
Between Home Gardens 

and Park Road 

 
To be programmed 

Old Bexley Lane Bexley 
Beaconsfield Road to 

Oakfield Lane 

 
To be programmed 

Crossways Boulevard Stone 
Galleons Boulevard to 

Anchord Boulevard 

 
To be programmed 

Sandpit Road Dartford Whole length 

Phase 1  
Footways to be 

programmed early 
2020 

Phase 2  
Carriageway mid to 

late 2020 

 
Footway Improvement - Contact Officer Mr Neil Tree 

Road Name Parish Extent and Description of 
Works 

Current Status 

Marcet Road Dartford 

Whole Length 
(Footway Reconstruction) 

 

 
Completed  

 

Lawford Gardens Dartford 

Whole Length 
(Footway Reconstruction) 

 

 
Completed 

 

Rayford Close Dartford 

Whole Length 
(Footway Reconstruction) 

 

 
Completed 

 

Sandpit Road Dartford 

Whole Length 
(Footway Reconstruction) 

 

 
As above 

 

Broad Lane Wilmington 

 
From the junction with 

common lane to 
approximately outside the 
evangelical free church. 

(Footway protection 
treatment) 

Completed 

Page 73 Agenda Item 12



Barn End Lane Wilmington 

 
From the junction with High 

Road to its junction with 
Goss Hill. 

 (Footway protection 
treatment) 

 

Completed 

Whitehead Close Wilmington 

 
Whole Length 

(Footway protection 
treatment) 

 

Completed 

Rowlatt Road Wilmington 

 
Whole Length 

(Footway protection 
treatment) 

 

Completed 

Gerdview Drive Wilmington 

 
Whole Length 

(Footway protection 
treatment) 

 

Completed 

Rowlatt Close Wilmington 

 
Whole Length 

(Footway protection 
treatment) 

 

Completed 

Meadow Walk Wilmington 

 
Whole Length 

(Footway protection 
treatment) 

 

Completed 

Brewers Field Wilmington 

 
Whole Length 

(Footway protection 
treatment) 

 

Completed 

Chapel Place Wilmington 

 
Whole Length 

(Footway protection 
treatment) 

 

Completed 

Mayors Lane Wilmington 

 
Whole Length 

(Footway protection 
treatment) 

 

Completed 

Shire Hall Lane Wilmington 

From the entrance into 
Emily Court to the end of 
the footway by the track 

east of Mayors Lane. 
(Footway protection 

treatment) 
 

Completed 

Page 74Agenda Item 12



Surface Treatments – Contact Officer Mr Jonathan Dean 

 
Milton Road 

 
 

Swanscombe Church Road to Sweyne Road 

Programmed for 
April 2020 

 
Hartley Bottom Road 

Longfield 

Manor Road to B260 Main 
Road 

Programmed for 
July 2020 

 

 

Page 75 Agenda Item 12



Appendix B – Drainage Repairs & Improvements 
 

Drainage Repairs & Improvements - Contact Officer Earl Bourner 
  

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status 

Bob Dunn 
way 

Dartford 

New system out for design by 
Amey Consulting. Currently 

preparing response to Thames 
Water queries which is taking 

additional time to resolve. 

Revised programme 
for design to 

complete by end of 
March 2020 

Puddledock 
Lane 

Willington 
New soakaway proposed to 
resolve highway flooding. 

In discussion with 
landowners for 

access.  

Hook Green 
Road 

Southfleet 

Replace existing small kerb inlets 
with conventional gullies due to 
regular blockages outside Hook 

Place Cottages. 

Works Completed 
17th January 2020 

Hook Green 
Road 

Southfleet 

Ditch clearance and cleansing 
works outside Cammock Hand, 
Tarram Cottages and either side 

of the railway bridge. 

Works order being 
prepared by 

engineer 

Milton Street Swanscombe 
Installation of new soakaway at 

Swanscombe Heritage Park near 
Madden Close 

Works Completed 

Main Road Sutton-at-Hone 

Ongoing cleansing and 
investigation work due to flooding 

between Arnolds Lane and 
Church Road 

Liaising with SGN 
due to long term 

works affecting road 
space availability. 

Priory Road 
South 

Dartford 

Flooding between rail bridge and 
Victoria Road due to a damaged 

gully lead outside of highway 
extents. 

Under investigation 

  
 

Page 76Agenda Item 12



Appendix C – Street Lighting 
 
Structural testing of KCC owned illuminated sign has identified the following as requiring replacement. 
A status of complete identifies that the column replacement has been carried out. Programme dates 
are identified for those still requiring replacement.  
 

 
Street Lighting Column Replacement – Contact Officer Sue Kinsella 
 

Road Name Parish Description of Works Status 

Junction 1A Dartford Replacement of 1 no street light 
On hold due to asset 

ownership dispute 

Home Gardens Dartford Replacement of 3 no street lights 
Works started but awaiting 

a fault repair on UKPN 
system before completing 

Park Way Wilmington 
Replacement of 4 no concrete 

lamp columns 

 1 remaining due to 
boundary dispute, 

situation resolved awaiting 
planned date 

Orchard Av Dartford Replacement of 1 Lamp column Complete 

Tufnail Rd Dartford Replacement of 4 Lamp columns Complete 

Westview Rd 
Dartford Replacement of 5 Lamp columns 4 Complete remaining 1 

requires intervention from 
UKPN 

Great Queen St 
Dartford Replacement of 13 Lamp 

columns 
Complete 

Strickland Ave 
Dartford Replacement of 2 Lamp columns Works on hold due to 

UKPN issue complete by 
end Mar 2020 

Barnham Rd 
Dartford Replacement of 2 Lamp column Works on hold due to 

UKPN issue complete by 
end Mar 2020 

Ivy Close 
Dartford Replacement of 2 Lamp column Works planned for FEB 

with UKPN 

Watling Street Dartford 
Replace 1 L/Col structural failure Complete end of Dec 

2019 

Tile Kiln Lane Wilmington 
Replace 2 L/Col’s structural 

failures 
Complete 

The Grove  
Swanscomb

e 

Replace 1 L/Col & 1 Signpost 
structural failures 

Complete 

Bow Arrow Dartford 
4 x Pole bracket replacements 2 Complete ABMK011 & 

013 remain waiting for 
UKPN 

Broad Lane Dartford 
6 x Pole bracket replacements 5 Complete ABMG005 

remaining waiting for 
UKPN  

Longfield Ave Longfield 3 x Pole bracket replacements Complete 

Tredager Road Wilmington 
5 x Pole bracket replacements 3 CompleteATEB001 & 

002 remaining waiting for 
UKPN 

Elizabeth St Dartford 
2 x Pole bracket replacements AEBU008 outstanding 

waiting for UKPN 

Page 77 Agenda Item 12



Alkerdan Lane Greenhithe  Replace 1 L/Col structural failure Complete 

Borland Close Greenhithe Replace 1 L/Col structural failure Complete 

Common Lane Wilmington 
Replace 3 L/Col’s structural 

failure 
Complete 

Parsons Lane Wilmington Replace 1 L/Col structural failure Complete 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 78Agenda Item 12



Appendix D – Transportation and Safety Schemes 
 
Casualty Reduction Measures 

 
The Schemes Planning & Delivery team is implementing schemes within Dartford Borough, in order to 
meet Kent County Council’s (KCC) strategic targets (for example, addressing traffic congestion or 
improving road safety).  Casualty reduction measures have been identified to address a known history 
of personal injury crashes. Current status correct as of 27th January 2020. 
 

Local Transport Plan funded schemes – Contact Officer: Helen Cobby 

Road Name Description of Works Current Status 

Casualty reduction measures (reactive) – Dartford 

London Road, Stone o/s The 
Brent Primary School 

To convert existing staggered crossing point to 
zebra.  

Works complete 

St. Vincents Road Dartford 
south of Bow Arrow Lane 

Refresh zebra crossing markings and install new 
led beacons and post. 

Works complete 

London Road Greenhithe j/w 
Knockhall Chase. 

Relocate zebra crossing approximately 28m 
east of existing location. 

Works complete. 

 
 

Externally Funded Schemes 
 
The Schemes Planning & Delivery team is implementing schemes within the borough of Dartford  
funded by external corporations whilst still meeting KCC’s strategic targets with the road network.  
 

Externally Funded Schemes – Contact Officer: Fiona Paine 

Road Name 
Description of 

Works 
Source of  
Funding 

Current Status 

    

    

 

Page 79 Agenda Item 12



Local Growth Fund 
 
Local Growth Fund programme update for Dartford Borough 
 
The Department for Transport (DfT) added £100m to the Local Growth Fund (LGF) pot in order to fund 
Local Sustainable Transport Fund Style schemes.  KCC subsequently submitted four Local 
Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) capital bids 1) East Kent – A network for Growth, 2) Kent 
Thameside – Integrated door-to-door journeys and 3) West Kent – Tackling Congestion.  The fourth 
was for Tonbridge Town Centre Regeneration, which included a highway improvements scheme in the 
Lower High Street as well as additional LSTF style measures.  The objective of all of the capital bids is 
to boost economic growth by decreasing carbon emissions and reducing congestion. 

 
The Kent Thameside, West Kent and Tonbridge Town Centre Regeneration bids were all successful. 
The schemes aim to: 
 

 improve access to employment and services 

 reduce the need to travel by the private car 

 enhance pedestrian, cycle and public transport facilities 

 improve sustainable transport connections 
 

The following schemes have been submitted as part of the successful Kent Thameside LSTF this 
financial year. 

 

Scheme Status 

Princes Road Cycle Route - 
 
Installation of new shared use cycle route 
on Princes Road (this scheme was 
previously reported to the JTB on 3rd 
December 2013).  Delivery to be jointly 
funded by S106 and LGF. 

Initial consultation with Members carried out in 
December 2016, only positive comments were 
received.  Following minor amendments to the 
design a further consultation followed.  This 
consultation closed on 10th June 2018 with an overall 
positive view on the proposed scheme. The positive 
comments recognised that the scheme would have 
an impact on improving the local cycle infrastructure 
and providing greater choice of route. The decision 
made by KCC/DBC officers was to proceed with the 
implementation of the scheme.  The final report is 

available at www.kent.gov.uk/princesroad and 
was presented at the Sept JTB and March JTB and 
approved. Ground works have commenced, 
vegetation has been cleared with construction 
programme started in Jan 2020 with an estimated 
build programme of 8 weeks, weather and 
congestion issues permitting.  

 

Page 80Agenda Item 12

http://www.kent.gov.uk/princesroad


Appendix E – Developer Funded Works 
 

Developer Funded Works (Section 278 Agreement Works) – Contact Officer: Dave Miles 
(unless shown otherwise) Updated 29-01-20. 

Scheme Name 
MasterGov    

Ref: - 
Parish Description Of Works 

Current Status 

Hedge Place 
Road DA091 Stone 

Provision of new 
carriageway, footway, 

drainage & street lighting 
along frontage of 

residential development  

Substantially 
complete. 

Remedial list 
issued (Natalie 

Peach) 

Southfleet Road DA2102 Swanscombe 

Alterations to existing 
highway to 

accommodate access 
into Eastern Quarry. 

Street lighting sign 
off outstanding. 

St Clements 
Way DA2131 Stone 

Installation of signalised 
junction to serve 

residential development 

Awaiting street 
lighting sign off and 
as built information. 

Cotton Lane 
(Gantry Place) DA3021 Stone 

Alterations to highway 
and formation of access 

to serve Stone PC 
community centre & 

residential development 

Submission being 
audited (Natalie 

Peach) 

Hedge Place 
Road DA3026 Stone 

Provision of footway to 
existing properties as 

part of development see 
DA091 

Substantially 
complete. 

Remedial work list 
issued. (Natalie 

Peach) 

Former GSK 
Site – Junction 

D DA3028 Dartford 

Construction of new 
roundabout at Temple 
Hill and provision of 

traffic signals for 
Fastrack  

Substantially 
complete. Awaiting 
street lighting sign 

off. 

Darenth 
Road/Powdermil

l Lane DA3032 Darenth 

Improvements to existing 
highway, new footway & 

street lighting 

Installation of street 
lighting in progress. 

(Natalie Peach) 

Central Road – 
Junctions E & F DA3037 Dartford 

Formation of bell mouth 
accesses & new 

footway/cycleway 

In progress. House 
building to be 

completed first. 

Former GSK 
Site – Junction 

B DA3050 Dartford 
New signalised junction 

in Central Road 

Awaiting 
completion and 
HFS remedials 

Instone Road DA3051 Dartford 

Alterations to existing 
highway to form access 

into Lidl store.  

Substantially 
complete awaiting 

documentation 
(Natalie Peach) 

Former GSK 
Site – Junction 

C DA3052 Dartford 

Provision of traffic 
signals to existing Mill 

Pond Road, Overy Street 
& Central Road junction. 

Awaiting 
completion of HFS 
remedial work etc. 

Central Road DA3070 Dartford 

Alterations to existing 
highway in conjunction 

with residential 
development 

Awaiting as built 
details. (Natalie 

Peach)  

Page 81 Agenda Item 12



Instone Road DA3077 Dartford 
Alteration to existing 
access for Lidl store 

Awaiting as built 
documentation to 

place site onto 
maintenance 

(Natalie Peach) 

Halcrow Avenue 
Phase 3 (The 

Bridge) DA3078 Dartford Provision of new footway   

Substantially 
complete. Minor 

remedial 
outstanding. 

Charles Street – 
Stone Crossing DA3089 Stone 

Provision of pedestrian 
crossing facilities in 

conjunction with new 
footbridge by NW Rail. 

Works completed. 
Awaiting as built 
information etc 
(Natalie Peach) 

Lower Hythe 
Street DA3090 Dartford 

Provision of new access 
& improvements to 

existing footway due to 
residential development. 

Substantially 
complete. Awaiting 
as built information. 

Darenth Road 
(Acacia Hall) DA3091 Dartford 

Provision of improved 
access (crossing 
Fastrack) to serve 
Acacia Hall site.  

Submission being 
audited (Natalie 

Peach) 

Green Street 
Green 

Road/Wood 
Lane DA3092 Darenth 

Provision of new footway 
fronting former Fox & 

Hounds pub. 

On Maintenance 
(Jamie Hare) 

Churchill Close DA3093 Darenth 

Alteration to existing 
access for Winners 

Chapel. 

Awaiting 
submission. 

Spring Vale 
(South) DA3094 Dartford 

Provision of new access 
& improvements to 
existing footway & 

carriageway due to Lidl 
development. 

Awaiting as built 
documents etc. 
(Natalie Peach) 

Mounts Road DA3095 Greenhithe 

Provision of new bell 
mouth access for access 

into Eastern Quarry 

Agreement signed. 
Awaiting works 

programme. 

Littlebrook 
Manorway 

(North) DA3096 Dartford 

Provision of two 
accesses to serve 

Mercedes showroom. 

Substantially 
complete. 

Coleridge 
Road/Shaftsbur

y Lane (S38) DA3099 Dartford 

Provision of new footway 
and turning facility and 
highway improvements 

due to residential 
development  

Substantially 
complete. 

Remedial work 
schedule issued. 

Brunel Way 
(The Bridge) DA3101 Dartford 

Provision of new footway 
for Leigh UTC. 

Work completed 
awaiting as built 

records. 

Market Street DA3106 Dartford 
Town Centre 

Regeneration Phase 1  

In progress 

Lowfield Street DA3129 Dartford 

Improvements to existing 
footway as part of 

residential development 

Comments made 
on technical 
submission 

Littlebrook 
Manorway 

(North) DA3149 Dartford 

New access for 
commercial development 

in Plot 4 & closure of 

Works on 
maintenance  

Page 82Agenda Item 12



existing access in 
Halcrow Avenue. 

London Road 
(Stone Pit 2) DA3156 Stone 

Provision of traffic signal 
junction 

TA issued; solicitor 
instructed. Land 

Issues being 
resolved (Jamie 

Hare) 

Hook Green 
Road DA3157 Southfleet 

New access to Hook 
Green Farmhouse. 

Works on 
maintenance 

Southfleet Road DA3166 Swanscombe 
Proposed Toucan 

Crossing 

Now likely to be a 
KCC Scheme. 

London Road DA3185 Stone 
Proposed access into 

Stone Lodge. 

Awaiting 
submission 

Cotton Lane DA3186 Stone 

Provision of new footway 
and pedestrian crossing 

facility to serve new 
school. 

TA issued. 
Awaiting signed 
Agreement from 
Sec. of State for 

Education.  

Crossways 
Boulevard DA3205 Stone 

Provision of Access to 
serve residential 

development adj. to St 
Mary’s Road. 

Submission 
awaited. 

Craylands Lane DA3254 Swanscombe 

Formation of access into 
residential development 
with associated highway 

improvements. 

Submission being 
audited. (Natalie 

Peach) 

Instone 
Road/Lowfield 

Street DA3263 Dartford 
Town Centre 

Regeneration Phase 2 

Submission 
awaited. 

Riverside Way DA3295 Dartford 
Amendment to existing 
vehicular access to unit. 

Submission being 
audited (Natalie 

Peach) 

St Clements 
Way (Hedge 

Place 
Roundabout) DA3332 Greenhithe 

Alterations to existing 
roundabout to provide 
additional access for 

Eastern Quarry 
development. 

Submission 
awaited. 

Gilbert Close DA3341 Swanscombe 

Alterations to existing 
highway as part of 

residential development. 

Awaiting 
submission. 

Watling Street DA3368 Bean 
Access off A296 to serve 

Bungalow Yard 

Awaiting details 
following 

Enforcement by 
EDC of illegally 

constructed access 

Home Gardens DA3380 Dartford 

Paving improvements 
and bus shelter adjacent 

to footbridge on south 
side 

Awaiting 
submission 

Rennie Drive DA3381 Dartford 

Alterations to exit on 
north side of existing 

roundabout.  

Awaiting 
submission. 

 

Page 83 Agenda Item 12



Appendix F – Bridge Works 
 

Bridge Works – Contact Officer: Earl Bourner 

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status 

No works planned 

 

Page 84Agenda Item 12



Appendix G – Traffic Systems 
 
There is a programme of scheduled maintenance to refurbish life expired traffic signal equipment across 
the county based upon age and fault history. The delivery of these schemes is dependent upon school 
terms and holiday periods; local residents, businesses and schools will be informed verbally and by a 
letter drop of the exact dates when known.  
 

Traffic Systems - Contact Officer: Toby Butler 
  

Location Description of Works Current Status 

Burnham Road near Priory Road 
Renewal of traffic signal 

controlled crossing 
Proposed May 2020 

Princes Road near Gore Road 
Renewal of traffic signal 

controlled crossing 
Proposed June 2020 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 85 Agenda Item 12



Appendix H - Combined Member Grant programme update  
   
Member Highway Fund programme update for the Dartford Borough  
The following schemes are those, which have been approved for funding by both the relevant Member 
and by Simon Jones, Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste. The list only includes 
schemes, which are  

 in design  

 at consultation stage 

 about to be programmed 

 Recently completed on site.  
 

The list is up to date as of 27th January 2020. 
  

The details given below are for highway projects only.  This report does not detail  

 Contributions Members have made to other groups such as parish councils 

 highway studies 

 traffic/ non-motorised user surveys funded by Members.   
 

More information on the schemes listed below can be found by contacting the District Manager for the 

Dartford Borough.  

Ann Allen (Wilmington) 

Details of Scheme Status 

No current highway schemes - 

 

Penny Cole (Dartford East) 

Details of Scheme Status 

Hill House Road and St Johns Road Stone – Proposed one way working out to public 

consultation  

 
Peter Harman (Swanscombe & Greenhithe)  

Details of Scheme Status 

Munford Drive Swanscombe – Proposed one way working In design 

 

Jeremy Kite MBE (Dartford Rural)  

Details of Scheme Status 

No current highway schemes - 

 

David Butler (Dartford North East) 

Details of Scheme Status 

No current highway schemes - 

 

Jan Ozog (Dartford West) 

Details of Scheme Status 

No current highway schemes - 

Page 86Agenda Item 12



1.1 Legal Implications 

1.1.1 Not applicable. 

1.2 Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

1.2.1 Not applicable. 

1.3 Risk Assessment 

1.3.1 Not applicable. 

Contacts: Richard Emmett / Denise Sutton 03000 418181 

Page 87 Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 
ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee held in 
the Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Friday, 29 
November 2019. 
 
PRESENT: Mr M A C Balfour (Chairman), Mr T Bond, Mr D L Brazier, Mr A Cook, 
Mr N J Collor, Mr S Holden, Mr A R Hills, Mr J M Ozog, Mr B H Lewis, Mr H Rayner, 
Mr I S Chittenden, Mr R H Bird, Mr M E Whybrow and Mr P W A Lake (Substitute for 
Mr R C Love, OBE) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mrs S V Hohler, Mr M D Payne, Miss S J Carey, Mrs R Binks and 
Mr P J Messenger 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs B Cooper (Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and 
Transport), Mr S Jones (Director of highways, Transportation and Waste) and 
Mrs K Stewart (Director of Environment Planning and Enforcement) 
 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
218. Apologies and Substitutes  
(Item 2) 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Mr A Booth and Mr R Love. 

 

Mr Lake was present as a substitute for Mr R Love.  

 
219. Election of Chairman  
(Item 3) 
 

1. The Committee elected Mr Holden as Chairman of the Committee. 
 

Agreed without a formal vote 
 

2. Mrs Holden thanked Mr Balfour for his hard work, commitment and valuable 
contribution to the Committee in his time as Chairman. 
 

3. Mr Holden expressed his ambitions as the new Chairman which reflected the 

positive and anticipated changes which were to be adopted by the New 

Leader of the Council, primarily around the functionalities of the Cabinet 

Committees and greater Member involvement. Mr Holden proposed that the 

Committee should develop its own themes to complement and advance the 

work of the administration, but not to contradict it, nor to repeat the work of 

Select Committees.  In order to pursue such a proposition, Mr Holden 

suggested that Cross-Party Member Groups be established and put forward 

the suggested themes: 

 

Page 89 Agenda Item 13



 

2 

(a) Trees 

(b) Plastics; and 

(c) Heavy Good’s Vehicles (HGV’s) - diverting them off of rural roads and 

onto more strategic routes 

 

Mr Holden invited Members to contact him directly with themes that could 
potentially be developed by the Cross-Party Members group. 

 
4. RESOLVED that Mr Holden be elected as Chairman of the Committee. 

 
220. Election of Vice-Chairman  
(Item 4) 
 

Mr S Holden proposed, and Mr M Balfour seconded that Mr R Love be elected 

as Vice-Chairman of the Cabinet Committee. There being no other 

nominations, this was agreed without a vote.  

 
221. Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda  
(Item 5) 
 

Mr R Bird declared an interest in item 16 and 17 of the agenda due to a 

personal interest in flooding matters and would therefore not participate in the 

discussion of those items.  

 

Mr A Hills declared an interest in item 16 and 17 of the agenda as Chairman of 

the Kent Flood Risk Management Committee, however, confirmed that he 

would participate in the discussion of those items.  

 
222. Minutes of the meeting held on 10 October 2019  
(Item 6) 
 

It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting on 10 October 2019 are a 

correct record and that they be signed by the Chairman. 

 
223. Verbal Update  
(Item 7) 
 

1. Miss S Carey expressed her enthusiasm in her new role as the Cabinet 

Member for Environment and provided Members with a brief insight into 

the anticipated work that would be undertaken within the coming months, 

including increased Cross-Party Member Working Groups. 

 

2. Mr Payne (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport) provided a verbal 

update on the following issues: 

 

International Transtech Awards 
The KCC Public Transport Team won the Gamechanger Award for Rural 
Innovation at the inaugural International Transtech Awards. This was for 

Page 90Agenda Item 13



 

3 

the rural electric mobility minibus scheme which has been operating in the 
Paddock Wood area. 
 
In July Kent County Council teamed up with Renault to introduce their first 
electric Renault Master minibus in England. This scheme had been 
operated by Compaid, the charity helped local disabled and vulnerable 
people to go about their daily lives and the minibus had been specially 
designed to cater for their needs. Owing to the success of the scheme the 
Electric Renault Master was due to go on general sale in 2020.  
 
The bus was also able to monitor driver behaviour.  Compaid drivers had 
achieved a gold standard with no instances of harsh braking, speeding, or 
sudden uncontrolled or excessive manoeuvres.  This was a great 
testament to the quality of operators that Kent Public Transport had 
available. 
 
Following the success of the trial, and the earlier successful trial of electric 
buses throughout Kent, which included Fastrack and Canterbury Park & 
Ride, Kent Public Transport were working on a policy to only procure 
electric buses as assets from 2021. This would make Kent Public 
Transport early adopters and pioneers of KCC’s electric strategy. 

 

Transport for Southeast (TFSE) 

The shadow Sub-National Transport Body, Transport for the South East, 

was currently out to consultation on its draft transport strategy. The region 

included sixteen highway authorities from Kent and Medway to Hampshire 

and the Isle of Wight; an area that had an economic output greater than 

Scotland, Northern Ireland and Wales combined, and second only to that of 

London, yet investment in transportation in the region was woefully low. 

The TfSE draft transport strategy had a thirty-year vision and would assist 

the vision for clean growth. The proposed Kent County Council response 

would be brought to the Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee in 

January 2020.  

 

Gatwick Airport  

Kent Highways & Transport had received significant correspondence 

regarding the plan by Gatwick Airport Limited to upgrade its emergency 

runway for routine use to assist with their future growth aspirations. KCC’s 

position was that it was firmly opposed to the proposed upgrade or any 

potential second runway at Gatwick Airport. The routine use of Gatwick’s 

emergency runway would result in a significant increase in aircraft 

movements, and a potential increase of noise, air quality and other issues 

affecting the local communities, which would be intolerable.  KCC 

continued to raise its concerns and would be responding formally to the 

Development Control Order process.  

 

Parish Seminars 

Page 91 Agenda Item 13



 

4 

Kent Highways Parish Seminars had been well attended throughout the 

autumn period. The primary focus was around transportation and Parish 

Highway Improvement Plans. Mr Payne noted that through collaborative 

working, KCC and the Parish Councils would be able to work together to 

identify and deliver priorities for Kent’s residents. Mr Payne recorded his 

thanks to the representatives of Kent Association of Local Councils who 

also attended and spoke. 

 

Recent Weather Events  

Kent Highways teams had attended various flooding areas across the 

county as a result of recent heavy isolated rainstorms. As part of the Live 

Labs innovation project, which had been reported at previous Cabinet 

Committee meetings, KCC sought to improve its approach to drainage 

maintenance and had installed pilot drain sensors as part of that work. The 

sensors would automatically identify when highway drains required 

cleansing. The trials would identify whether the technology could be 

installed on a wider basis. 

 

Winter service  

The highways teams continued to keep Kent’s roads and residents safe 

throughout the winter period. Kent Highways had a full salt stock 

complement of over 23,000 tonnes and during November, there had been 

five overnight precautionary salting runs. 

 

Road Resurfacing 

Kent Highways had delivered £25 million of the £29 million road surfacing 

programme. The remainder would be delivered in the New Year once the 

winter season ended. 

 

Street-lighting  

The streetlight conversion programme had delivered 120,000 LED street-

light conversions, around 2,000 more than the original contract. 

Conversions would be ongoing as part of KCC’s general approach to 

streetlight maintenance. This would ensure continued energy saving and 

carbon reduction. 

 
Windmills  

KCC had commissioned urgent repair and weatherproofing works to a 

selection of the KCC windmills during the year 2019/20. 

 

At Drapers Mill, Margate, a combination of weatherproofing works and 

mechanical repairs were carried out during the late summer. These 

involved re-tarring the weather-boarded smock tower, removing and 

repairing the windows and renewing the covering on the museum roof. 

Mechanical repairs involved vital work to the fantail gearing and the sweep 

Page 92Agenda Item 13



 

5 

framing which was preventing the mill from being able to operate by wind 

power. 

 

At Meopham Mill, essential holding repairs to the doors and windows at all 

levels had been undertaken throughout the autumn. Major structural 

repairs were required and, subject to funding, these would commence next 

summer. 

 

Following weather damage to the shutters in its sweeps, urgent works were 

carried out at Cranbrook Union Mill during October. These were 

successfully done using rope access techniques to avoid the expense of a 

mobile access platform or cherry picker. 

 

At West Kingsdown Mill, a programme of emergency and urgent 

weatherproofing works had been commissioned. The work carried out 

would safeguard the structural timber frame by renewing the weatherboard 

cladding and windows. A start was made during November and the work 

was due to be completed in March and April 2020. 

 

3. Cabinet Members responded to comments and questions as follows: 

 

(a) Mr Payne confirmed that the policy for procuring electric buses was in 

reference to KCC’s own fleet of assets and this would be carried out 

with the input from Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) as 

part of the Energy and Low Emission Strategy. 

 

(b) Mr Lewis commended the work of officers for the work carried out within 

Margate to mitigate and reduce flooding.  

 

(c) With regard to the discolouration of paint on Cranbrook Mill, this was 

primarily due to the ridged weather boarding which caused bacteria to 

collect and as a result led to the discolouration.   

 

(d) In response Members queries as to whether the drainage sensors 

would be an addition to the scheduled maintenance programme or a 

replacement for it, Mr Payne confirmed that the pilot of the drain 

sensors was in its infancy and that more data needed to be collected to 

ascertain whether the pilot had been successful and whether the 

technology could be installed on a permanent basis.  

 
224. Kent & Medway Energy and Low Emissions Strategy - consultation 
response and next steps  
(Item 8) 
 

Carolyn McKenzie (Head of Sustainable Business & Communities) was in 

attendance for this item.  

Page 93 Agenda Item 13



 

6 

 

1. Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) and Ms McKenzie 

introduced the report that outlined the results of the Energy and Low 

Emission Strategy public consultation which was carried out from 1 July 20 

23 September 2019. The report set out the proposed responses and 

suggested alterations to be made to the Strategy for the consideration by 

the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee and also set out the 

next steps for the approval of the Strategy by early 2020.  

 

2. The officer responded to comments and questions as follows: 

 

(a) Mrs B Cooper (Corporate Director for Growth, Environment and 

Transport) responded to comments regarding bus services within 

Thanet and clarified that there was a proposal put forward which was 

reversed and as a result KCC carried out the Big Conversation which 

looked at specific routes (Dover, Sevenoaks, Tenterden, Maidstone and 

West Malling). An update report on the outcome of those bus pilots 

would be presented to the Committee at a future date which would 

identify the impacts of those pilots and help to shape bus provision in 

the future. Within Thanet, Mrs Cooper confirmed that changes had 

been made to the bus route, however, there were no cuts to the 

service.  

 

(b) In response to comments concerning appropriate resources and the 

promotion of work carried out by Ms McKenzie’s team, Miss Carey 

informed Members that discussions had taken place around appropriate 

resourcing to support the extensive amount of work carried out by the 

Environment, Planning and Enforcement directorate and this would be 

incorporated into the budget setting process. Miss Carey tackled the 

misconception that Kent County Council had failed to make positive 

environmental changes and noted its successes stories since 2016, 

including the £40m LED conversion project and reduction in waste to 

landfill from 40% to 2%. KCC had made tremendous improvements and 

would continue it its efforts to deliver clean growth.  

 

(c) In relation to applying further pressure to those areas and elements that 

sat outside of KCC control, such a maritime and aviation, Mr Payne 

informed Members that he attended the Maritime Straits Conference, in 

conjunction with partners throughout 10 other European countries and 

signed a joint declaration for the low carbon transition within the 

maritime industry. Mr Payne informed Members that the Energy and 

Low Emission Strategy had been produced as a result of the passage 

project and thanked Ms McKenzie along with her team for their 

excellent work.  

 

Page 94Agenda Item 13



 

7 

3. It was RESOLVED that the proposed response to the feedback from the 

public consultation (and alterations if appropriate) and next steps for formal 

agreement of the strategy in early 20202, be noted.  

 
225. Performance Dashboard  
(Item 9) 
 

Rachel Kennard (Chief Analyst) and David Beaver (Head of Waste 

Management) were in attendance for this item.  

 

1. Ms Kennard introduced the report that showed progress made against 

targets set for Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) up to September 2019. 

Eleven of the eighteen KPIs achieved target and were RAG rated green, 

seven KPIs were below target but had achieved floor standard and had 

therefore been RAG rated amber.  

 

2. Officers responded to comments and questions as follows: 

 

(a) With regard to improvements to be made from the service, Mrs Cooper 

(Corporate Director for Growth, Environment and Transport) informed 

the Committee that the indicators were presented to Members on an 

annual basis for review.  

 

(b) In response KPI WM03: Waste recycled and composted at HWRC’s 

and reduced recycle rates, Mr Beaver informed Members that there had 

been a reduction in the floor target from 67.3% to 64% following the 

recent change of policy to start charging for soil, rubble, hardcore and 

plasterboard. Mr Beaver confirmed that the recycled rate was measured 

against the non-recycled rates (residual tonnes) and as a result of the 

loss of soil, rubble, hardcore and plasterboard as a recyclable material, 

recycling rates at the HWRC’s had also reduced. The intake of soil, 

rubble, hardcore and plasterboard had reduced from 38,000 tonnes to 

around 9,000 tonnes in 2019. Mr Beaver informed Members that the 

intention was to review the KPIs with Members to ensure they reflected 

realistic targets.  

 

(c) Mr Beaver informed the Committee that there had been an increase in 

the application of licenses for skips by 45% and said that trade waste 

had increased by 1.7%.   

 

(d) In response to fly tipping, Mr Beaver said that the policy had been in 

situ for 6 months and confirmed that there had not been an increase in 

the number of fly tipping incidents reported from District Councils. As a 

result of the policy, members of the public had started to re-use the 

materials or sell it, all of which supported KCC’s objective to reduce the 

amount of material deposited at Household Waste Recycling Centres 

Page 95 Agenda Item 13



 

8 

and promoting alternative means of disposing materials in a sustainable 

but appropriate way.  

 

(e) With regard to concerns around the negative financial impact on KCC, 

Mr Beaver assured Members that any form of waste reduction 

represented a cost saving for the authority. There were very few 

materials that generated income for KCC as a vast majority of 

recyclable materials, including glass, cans and plastic had a significant 

cost attached to them as they needed to be processed in a particular 

way in order for them to be re-used/ sold. The price for many of the 

materials was volatile and subject to global commodity prices, with 

materials such as paper and card costing around £75 per tonne, 

however, most authorities were paying £6 per tonne as the global 

market had ceased to take the material.  

 

(f) In response to the cost of soil, rubble and hardcore, Mr Beaver 

confirmed that it cost £20 plus per tonne as the cost of haulage, 

processing at HWRC’s and manpower to deliver the service needed to 

be factored in.  

 

3. It was RESOLVED that the Performance Dashboard report be noted.   

 
226. Strategic Delivery Plan Monitoring: Quarter 2 2019/20  
(Item 10) 
 

David Firth (Policy Adviser) and Shannon Ryan (Business Planning Officer) 

were in attendance for this item.  

 

1. Mr Firth introduced the report which provided an overview of the Council’s 

Strategic Delivery Plan Monitoring arrangements and the analysis and 

emerging themes from Quarter 2 2019/20 Strategic Outcome 2 activity 

submissions. Mr Firth noted the importance of ensuring that the Strategic 

Delivery Plan was structured correctly, both as a management tool and 

also for Member oversight. The Quarter 2 analysis identified that of the 30 

Strategic Outcome 2 activities, only 2 of those were not on track and had 

been considered by Growth, Economic Development and Communities 

Cabinet Committee. Mr Firth advised Members that the report would be 

presented to the Committee in six months’ time and welcomed comments 

from Members.  

 

2. It was RESOLVED that the Strategic Delivery Plan Monitoring 

arrangements and the analysis and emerging themes from Quarter 2 

2019/20 Strategic Outcome 2 activity submissions, be noted.  

 
227. 19/00085 - Thanet Parkway Railway Station - Delivery  
(Item 11) 

Page 96Agenda Item 13



 

9 

 
Joseph Ratcliffe (Transport Strategy Manager), Tom Marchant (Head of 

Strategic Planning and Policy) and Stewart Fowler (Principal Transport 

Planner) were in attendance for this item.  

 

1. Mr Payne (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport) introduced the 

report that set out the progress to date on the proposed Thanet Parkway 

Railway Station and explained that Kent County Council (KCC) would 

commit up to £17.81m to complete the funding package for the scheme 

(£34.51m) which would secure a significant contribution (£14m) of Local 

Growth Fund (LGF) money from the South East Local Enterprise 

Partnership (SELEP) and it would enable the scheme to be delivered. 

Following completion of the outline design and submission of a revised 

planning application, the next stage of the project was to undertake 

detailed design, and subject to planning determination, to progress onto 

the delivery stage of the scheme. A decision to progress with the delivery 

of the scheme was required to ensure no further delay to the project 

programme and to allow for the spend of LGF money by the end of the 

Growth Deal Period (March 2021). The final decision to progress with the 

project would be taken to Cabinet on 2 December 2019.  

 

2. Mrs Stewart (Director of Environment, Planning and Enforcement) informed 

the Committee that   an Executive decision was required in order to deliver 

the project in the anticipated timescale. and avoid the risk of losing the 

£14m SELEP funding. Mrs Stewart advised Members that if this deadline 

was missed it was it was unlikely that   the £14m investment would be 

available at a future date.  

 

3. Mr Ratcliffe advised Members that the Thanet Parkway Railway Station 

had undergone a number of design iterations and two planning applications 

had been submitted. The first planning application submitted in 2018 had 

been withdrawn due to significant design changes to the scheme and a 

new Planning Application was submitted in the week commencing 11 

November 2019. The newest application was in the process of validation 

as part of the Planning Applications Group remit; any emerging planning 

issues would then fall to the Planning Applications Group and Planning 

Applications Committee to determine.  

 

4. Mr Ratcliffe informed The Committee that the Business Case had been 

through a vigorous assessment process by SELEP’s Independent 

Technical Evaluator. As a result of that process, officers had produced a 

revised Business Case which contained the new cost estimate; the details 

of which were reflected within the Committee report. Mr Ratcliffe confirmed 

that the revised Business Case and associated costs of the project were 

due to go through a final validation process, however, the feedback 

Page 97 Agenda Item 13



 

10 

received from KCC’s Consultancy Team was that Thanet Parkway Railway 

Station represented very high value for money.  

 

5. The Chairman welcomed Mrs Binks and Mr Messenger to address the 

Committee in their capacity as the local Members for Thanet.  

 

6. Mrs Binks (Member for Broadstairs) raised the following points: -  

 

(a) Schools were the primary cause of traffic concerns in Thanet 

 

(b) Thanet had seven stations already in existence that needed significant 

upgrades, including the network rail upgrade of the HS1 which would 

significantly improve travel time, the Thanet Parkway Railway station 

would offer no further benefit 

 
(c)   Commuters from Birchington and Westgate would be encouraged to 

drive a further 10 minutes to Thanet Parkway Station in order to reduce 

their train travel time by 14 minutes. However, the train journey for 

those commuters using the existing town stations would remain the 

same 

 
(d) There was concern in Thanet that the existing stations, which were 

better situated for commuter use, would become underused and 

eventually close.  This would, mean that those who travelled by train 

would have to drive further, through a congested road infrastructure 

network, to access the Thanet Parkway Station. Should that happen, 

the closure of the existing town centre stations would have a 

detrimental impact on the visitor economy 

 
(e) Thanet Parkway Station was ill-planned with two basic platforms, no 

toilets a lack of security and no staff to assist vulnerable or disabled 

passengers 

  
(f) If the parking facility was not free, this would have a detrimental effect 

on the residential estate on the south side of the railway as commuters 

may leave their cars parked in the housing estate and use the subway 

to the station 

 
(g) Commuters may have to drive to Thanet Parkway Station due to the 

reduced bus service from Cliffsend 

 
(h) Thanet was amongst one of the highest built on areas within the county, 

Thanet Parkway Station would potentially encourage additional 

developments to be built on nearby agricultural land 

 
Mrs Binks concluded that Thanet would welcome a quicker connection into 
London, however, this would only be achieved through an upgrade to the 

Page 98Agenda Item 13



 

11 

rail network. Whilst acknowledging that that investment should not be 
turned away from Thanet, she stated that public money needed to be spent 
in the correct way to benefit those living and working in Thanet.  

 
7. Mr Messenger (Member for Ramsgate) raised the following points: - 

 

(a) The variance and increase in the projected cost created uncertainty in 

the project’s long-term viability 

 

(b) In 2017 KCC conducted a consultation on the Thanet Parkway Station 

asking residents whether they agreed or objected to the scheme, out of 

355 responses only 34% said yes 

 

(c) Mr Messenger had conducted an online survey which asked the 

residents of Thanet whether they wanted a further rail station; out of the 

256 respondents, 226 were opposed to the station and 49 were in 

agreement. 

 

(d) There would only be a reduction in travel time by 10 minutes. Thanet 

had seven stations already in existence that needed significant 

upgrades, including the network rail upgrade of the HS1 which would 

significantly improve travel time 

 
(e) A carpark should not be the basis of encouragement for extra rail usage 

in a time when carbon reduction should be the primary concern 

 

(f) With regard to aviation plans from Manston airport, the existing 

Ramsgate station was the perceived favourable option for both freight 

and passenger facilities for the airport 

 

(g) Thanet was amongst one of the highest built on areas within the county, 

Thanet Parkway Station would potentially encourage additional 

developments to be built on nearby agricultural land. 

 

Mr Messenger expressed the view that that prior to a decision at Cabinet, 

Kent County Council should conduct a further survey as to whether or not 

residents of Thanet supported the proposal of the additional Thanet 

Parkway Station.  

 

8. Mr Rayner moved, and Mr Lewis seconded the motion as set out below: 

 

‘the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee recommend to Mr 
Payne, as Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport, that before further 
action to effect the printed recommendations on pages 119 and 126 , that 
Kent County Council undertake a further public survey and consultation 
with one of the questions on the survey being “do you want the Thanet 
parkway station” ?’   

Page 99 Agenda Item 13



 

12 

 
9. Officers to responded to comments and questions as follows: 

 

(a) Mrs Cooper (Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and Transport) 

addressed the Committees concerns and motion to conduct a further 

consultation. She advised Members that the proposed decision in 

relation to Thanet Parkway Station had an impact on a series of other 

decisions and  assured Members that the proposed decision was to 

agree that, should the project proceed, then KCC would underwrite the 

cost and this was to primarily protect its position with the LGF. As 

advised by Mr Ratcliffe, the progress of the Thanet Parkway Station 

project was subject to the approval of planning permission being 

granted and this was still due to go out to consultation. Mrs Cooper 

suggested Cabinet could agree to delay taking the decision until their 

meeting in January 2020 which would provide time for KCC to carry out 

the survey as proposed in the revised recommendation. 

 

(b) In summary, the key concerns raised related to: 

 

 The escalation and variance of cost  

 Revised journey improvement time  

 The exit strategy  

 Queries around the newly generated income  

 An updated catchment area and passenger modelling  

 EV charging infrastructure within the parking vicinity  

 Reconsideration of the key aims and objectives of the station which 

was initially to bring employment into the Thanet area, not to 

encourage people out of Thanet and into London 

 

10. It was RESOLVED that  the Environment and Transport Cabinet 

Committee recommend to Mr Payne, as Cabinet Member for Highways 

and Transport, that before further action to effect the  recommendations on 

pages 119 and 126 of the report , that Kent County Council undertake a 

further public survey and consultation with one of the questions on the 

survey being “do you want the Thanet parkway station” 

 
228. Fly Tipping Enforcement Plan - Update  
(Item 12) 
 

David Beaver (Head of Waste Management) and Hannah Allard (Waste 

Business Development) were in attendance for this item. 

 
1. Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) introduced the report which 

provided an update on the actions that had been undertaken since July 
2019 and the planned actions over the coming months. Miss Carey 
informed the Committee that Kent County Council (KCC) had committed 

Page 100Agenda Item 13



 

13 

£250,000 to reduce the level of fly tipping in Kent and would continue to 
build on its close working relationship with the district and borough councils 
and other partners through the Kent Resource Partnership (KRP) in order 
to tackle the criminal activity. Miss Carey advised Members that the 
collection and enforcement of fly tipping was the primary responsibility of 
the district and borough councils, of which KCC played a key supportive 
role via the KRP.  
 

2. Supplementary to the above Mrs Allard provided an update to Members on 
the key actions to date and referred in particular to the “Op Assist” action 
days, the duty of care communications campaign, the duty of care small 
business course, enforcement signage, magistrates training and the 
consistency of reporting.  

 

3. Officers responded to comments and questions as follows: 
 

(a) Mrs Allard informed Members that Kent County Council were part of the 
National Fly Tipping Prevention Group which reviewed the work 
undertaken across the county. Mrs Allard agreed to review Members 
requests to circulate feedback from the Magistrates Association.  
 

(b) In response to assisting landowners, Mrs Allard confirmed that it was 
primarily the responsibility of the landowner to appropriately dispose of 
any fly tipped waste, however, if there was sufficient evidence and an 
investigation to be undertaken in relation to the incident, then subject to 
available resources from the District or Borough Council, KCC would 
help to support the District and Borough  councils in the prosecution 
process.  

 

(c) With regard to the dissemination of information to Town and Parish 
Councils, Mrs Allard assured Members that KCC officers had attended 
the Parish seminars in order to raise awareness of the campaign. In 
January 2020, the Waste Management Team also intended to promote 
the duty of care campaign via short information videos and animations 
online, via social media, posters, leaflets, newspaper adverts and bus 
advertisements. The main message of the campaign for residents was 
to alert them to rogue traders operating in Kent.   

 
(d) Mrs Allard confirmed that the days of action had proved to be a 

successful joint operation and resulted in the following: 
 

 Swale: 3 vehicles seized, 5 stopped and 2 fixed penalty notices  
 

 Maidstone: 1 vehicle seized, 1 stopped and 1 fixed penalty notice 
 

 Thanet: 2 vehicles seized, 21 stopped and 8 notices and 1 fixed 
penalty notice 

 
Mrs Allard agreed to circulate prosecution results to Members. 
 

(e) In response to queries concerning the drop in residual waste and cross-
border usage of Household Waste Recycling Centres, Mrs Allard 

Page 101 Agenda Item 13



 

14 

confirmed that the Waste Management Team was due to undertake a 
postcode data collection survey at the sites and said that the data 
would be included within the evaluation report of the scheme. With 
regard to volume of materials deposited at the Medway Household 
Waste Recycling Centre, Mrs Allard confirmed that this had also 
reduced.  
 

(f) Mrs Allard informed the Committee that it was the duty of District and 
Borough Councils to instigate days of action, however, KCC did sit on  

 

(g) Mrs Allard informed the Committee that it was the duty of District and 
Borough Councils to instigate days of action, however, agreed to raise 
the issue of installing cameras at the identified hotspots within 
Tunbridge & Malling and Gravesham with the Enforcement officers who 
sat on the Environmental Crime Practitioners Working Group. 

 
4. It was RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 

 
229. 19/00091 -  Adoption of Household Waste Recycling Centre Enforcement 
Policy  
(Item 13) 
 

David Beaver (Head of Waste Management) and Hannah Allard (Waste 

Business Development) were in attendance for this item. 

 

1. Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) introduced the report that 

set out the Household Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC) Enforcement 

Policy which aimed to clarify the procedures that may be taken by Kent 

County Council (KCC) to ensure compliance with existing KCC HWRC 

operating policies.  

 

2. Mrs Allard informed the Committee that the Enforcement Policy was a 

aggregation of existing policies and allowed KCC and its partners to carry 

out enforcement in a fair, practical and consistent manner. The Policy 

addressed several key issues and the actions to be taken to prevent of 

rectify infringements of legislation or policy, including: the abuse of staff 

and other customers, trade waste, theft of materials, fly tipping and non-

adherence to HWRC policies.  

 

3. It was RESOLVED that the proposed decision (19/00091) to be taken by 

the Cabinet Member for Environment, to introduce the Enforcement Policy 

which will support KCC and their contracted HWRC Providers in the 

effective, transparent and permitted delivery of HWRC waste enforcement 

practices, be endorsed.  

 

Page 102Agenda Item 13



 

15 

230. 19/00092 - SC18031 - Re-commissioning of contracts for the Management 
and Operation of Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs) and Waste 
Transfer Stations (WTSs) in Kent, including Haulage Services  
(Item 14) 
 

David Beaver (Head of Waste Management) and Hannah Allard (Waste 

Business Development) were in attendance for this item. 

 

1. Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) introduced the report that 

set out the details of the commissioning plan for the recommissioning of 

contracts for the Management and Operation of Household Waste 

Recycling Centres (HWRCs) and Waste Transfer Stations (WTSs) in Kent, 

including haulage services.  

 

2. Mr Beaver informed the Committee that Waste Management operated 18 

HWRCs across Kent and within those were 6 Transfer Stations. The 

contracts for those sites were due to expire in October 2020. The market 

engagement exercise revealed that the current suppliers had limited 

appetite to take title and commercial risk for the final disposal of recyclable 

materials. Therefore the recommissioning of the services would enable 

Kent County Council to update and standardise the contract terms and 

Conditions and service specification for all HWRC and WTS across Kent 

and to award sustainable contracts to suppliers that were incentivised the 

delivery of a high quality service such as improved customer care, higher 

recycling levels, reduced contamination and the development of re-use 

initiatives. Mr Beaver concluded that the commissioning approach would 

help to maximise recycling in Kent and reduce the cost of waste disposal 

services.  

 

3. Officers responded to comments and questions as follows: 

 

(a) With regard to whether a proposal had been submitted for a HWRC in 

Cranbrook, it was confirmed that no progress had been made.  

 
4. It was RESOLVED that the proposed decision (19/0009) to be taken by the 

Cabinet Member for Environment, to award new service contracts for the 

Management and Operation of Household Waste Recycling Centres 

(HWRCs) and Waste Transfer Stations (WTSs) in Kent, including haulage 

services, be endorsed.  

 
231. 19/00090 - Clinical Waste Collection, Reception and Disposal Services - 
SC18063  
(Item 15) 
 

David Beaver (Head of Waste Management) was in attendance for this item. 

 

Page 103 Agenda Item 13



 

16 

1. Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) introduced the report that 

sought Members approval to enter into a contract for Collection, Reception 

and Disposal of Clinical Waste materials collected at the kerbside by all 

Waste Collection Authorities in Kent. 

 

2. Mr Beaver informed the Committee that Kent County Council, as the Waste 

Disposal Authority under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, had a 

statutory duty to provide clinical disposal services. Waste Management had 

worked closely with Strategic Commissioning to test the market and work 

was underway to evaluate the tenders. Subject to Committee approval, the 

contract would be effective from 1 January 2020 for a four-year period.  

 
3. It was RESOLVED that the proposed decision (19/00090) to be taken by 

the Cabinet Member for Environment, to award a new contractual 

arrangement for the Collection, Reception and Disposal of Clinical Waste 

collected by the Waste Collection Authorities; and to enter into an up to 4 

year arrangement based upon the indicative gate fees, be endorsed.  

 
232. Flood Risk Management Policies  
(Item 16) 
 

Max Tant (Flood and Water Manager) and Bronwyn Buntine (Sustainable 

Drainage Team Leader) were in attendance for this item.  

 

1. Mr Tant introduced the report that outlined the three separate policy items, 

which subject to approval from the Committee, were to be adopted as part 

of the Flood Risk Management Policy. This included an update to the 

Drainage and Planning Policy, the introduction of a Land Drainage Policy; 

and an updated Section 19 Reporting Policy, all of which had been 

updated to reflect KCCs functions, current guidance, best practice and 

clarified KCCs role in flood risk management. Mr Tant referred in particular 

to the updated Section 19 Reporting Policy and informed Members that 

based on lessons learned, a public report would only be produced where 

internal flooding had affected five or more properties or critical 

infrastructure assets in a localised area.   

 

2. Officers responded to comments and questions as follows: 

 

(a) With regard to the installation of ponds on new developments and the 

issues around long-term maintenance of the SuDS assets, Ms Buntine 

informed the Committee that recent incident within the Tovil area was 

the rationale behind the introduction of the verification report condition 

which ensured that information was gathered on drainage systems and 

that they were implemented as approved.  Ms Buntine advised 

Members that Borough Councils would need to include conditions for 

developers to provide the details of such assets within the planning 

Page 104Agenda Item 13



 

17 

approval and would expect Borough Councils to consult with KCC on 

any major sites.  

 
3. It was RESOLVED that the proposed decisions (19/00087, 19/00088 and 

19/00089) to be taken by the Cabinet Member for Environment to  

 
(a)  adopt the following policies: 

 

 Drainage and Planning Policy (19/00088) 

 Land Drainage Policy (19/00087) 

 Section 19 Reporting Policy (19/00089); and 

 

(b) delegate to the Director of Environment, Planning and Enforcement the 

authority to make any further modifications which may be necessary 

such as formatting changes and typographical errors in order to publish 

these policies, 

 

be endorsed.  

 
233. 19/00086 - Kent County Council Flood Response Emergency Plan  
(Item 17) 
 

Tony Harwood (Resilience and Emergency Planning Manager) and Louise 

Butfoy (Resilience and Emergency Planning Project Officer) were in 

attendance for this item.  

 

1. Mrs Hohler (Deputy Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory 

Services) introduced the report that set out Kent County Council’s Flood 

Response Emergency Plan. The report outlined the scope and ambition of 

the latest updates and sought input from Members of the Environment and 

Transport Cabinet Committee prior to Cabinet Member sign-off of the Flood 

Response Emergency Plan.  

 

2. Supplementary to the above, Mr Harwood informed the Committee that 

revisions to the Flood Response Emergency Plan addressed both current 

and projected climate change impacts for Kent as identified within the UK 

Climate Change Risk Assessment 2017, the impact of flooding on 

vulnerable people and communities and reaffirmed Kent County Councils 

leadership role as a ‘Category 1 Responder’ (as defined within the Civil 

Contingencies Act 2004) in the event of coastal, fluvial and surface water 

flooding. Mr Harwood noted that the sign-off of the Emergency Plan was 

key as it affected all divisions in the County and, subject to endorsement by 

the Committee, would act as the overarching policy guidance for KCC flood 

response interventions. Mr Harwood thanked all officers and Members who 

had contributed to the development of the revised plan and welcomed 

comments from the Committee.  

Page 105 Agenda Item 13



 

18 

 

3. Officers responded to comments and questions as follows: 

 

(a) Mr Jones (Director of Highways and Transportation and Waste) 

responded to Members comments and recognised that drainage 

problems needed to be addressed with immediate effect. A number of 

pilots had been initiated, including the instalment of smart gullies, which 

monitored drainage and alerted services to any blockages, KCC also 

led a trial activity on how it allocated funding to improve pre-inspection 

work to better understand where officers needed to be deployed as a 

priority and to ensure that the money spent on preventative 

maintenance work was appropriate and justified.  Mr Jones assured 

Members that Kent County Council was working with all District 

Councils to implement a new regime which would result in a significant 

dividend to KCC. Mr Jones recognised the wider challenge around 

drainage and water management infrastructure and assured Members 

that work would continue to be done to understand and improve the 

critical drainage assets. 

 

(b) Mr Harwood noted the omission of the non-tidal boat stationed at 

Tonbridge and agreed to update the appended table accordingly.     

 

(c) Mr Jones assured the Committee that a significant amount of work 

continued to be undertaken to identify critical drainage areas and to 

understand the process for managing those with a view to finding 

alternative solutions.  KCC had also held a number of seminars with 

District and Parish Councils to better understand planned activities and 

to ensure that KCC’s plans corresponded to the District and Parish 

Council planned activities i.e. the harvest period. Mr Jones informed the 

Committee that a significant amount of work had been done to map the 

drainage network and that KCC continued to uncover drains that had 

failed to be transferred over from District records which exposed 

soakaways and lagoons that were not mapped historically. Mr Jones 

reaffirmed his confidence in the improved asset portfolio and KCCs 

improved approach to managing critical assets.  

 

4. It was RESOLVED that the proposed decision (19/00086) to be taken by 

the Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory Services to approve 

the scope and content of the updated KCC Flood Response Emergency 

Plan, be endorsed.  

 
234. 19/00074 - Kent Resilience Forum Animal and Plant Health Emergency 
Plan  
(Item 18) 
 

Page 106Agenda Item 13



 

19 

Tony Harwood (Resilience and Emergency Planning Manager) and Louise 

Butfoy (Resilience and Emergency Planning Project Officer) were in 

attendance for this item.  

 

1. Mrs Hohler (Deputy Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory 

Services) introduced the report that set out the revised Kent County 

Council Animal and Plant Health Emergency Plan. Mrs Hohler informed 

Members that the scope and audience of the revised plan had been 

expanded and changed to reflect the multi-agency nature of the Kent 

Resilience Forum agenda and included within it new risks such as non-

native mosquitos, a more detailed local plan in relation to the Ashford 

Livestock Market and safeguarding for the welfare of animals in transit.  

 

2. It was RESOLVED that the that the proposed decision (19/00074) to be 

taken by the Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory Services to: 

 

(a) agree the principle of re-designation of the corporate Animal and Plant 

Health Emergency Plan as a KCC-led KRF document; and  

 

(b) approve the scope and content of the Animal and Plant Health 

Emergency Plan, 

 

be endorsed.  

 

 
235. Ash Dieback in Kent  
(Item 19) 
 

Tony Harwood (Resilience and Emergency Planning Manager), Robin Hadley 

(Soft Landscape Asset Manager) and Louise Butfoy (Resilience and 

Emergency Planning Project Officer) were in attendance for this item.  

 

1. Miss Carey (Cabinet Member for Environment) introduced the report that 

provided an update on Ash Dieback in Kent and described the evolving 

local response, as well as the outbreak’s environmental and economic 

impacts. It further sought to identify future trends and risks, as well as 

policy, staffing, financial and other resource implications for Kent County 

Council and its partners. Miss Carey commended Mr Harwood for his 

report on BBC radio which highlighted the extent of work that continued to 

be carried out by Kent County Council, Kent Districts and partners to 

address the spread of the pathogen.  

 

2. Officers responded to comments and questions as follows: 

 

(a) Miss Carey agreed to form a cross-party Member Working Group with a 

specific focus on tree policy. She noted that a significant amount of 

Page 107 Agenda Item 13



 

20 

work had already been undertaken by the Environment, Planning and 

Enforcement team to ensure that Kent had its own Tree Policy and on 

the basis that the Environmental Bill be passed, there would be a 

number of new opportunities and mechanisms for funding. 

 

(b) Mr Harwood confirmed that a policy had been agreed and adopted by 

Kent County Council and Kent Districts which rejected a pre-emptive 

felling approach. Whilst other counties, notably Devon, had adopted a 

policy that supported significant interventions to clear Ash trees from 

the roadside, KCC undertook extensive monitoring and only safety 

specific interventions to reduce impacts on landscape, biodiversity and 

budgets.. Supplementary to the financial aspect of felling, KCC did not 

want to remove trees which may be genetically less susceptible to Ash 

Dieback and were therefore important for ensuring future generations of 

resistant Ash.  

 

(c) Mr Hadley verified the distinction between urban, street and woodland 

trees and said that a significant amount of money had gone into tackling 

Ash Dieback within the woodland setting. The recent exponential 

increase in extent and intensity of infection and a worsening prognosis, 

as evidenced within the latest survey data, suggested that the costs to 

the County Council and its partners would continue to increase year on 

year and therefore KCC needed to ensure it was taking an informed 

and proportional approach to managing the outbreak.  

 
3. It was RESOLVED that the planning and response contingencies outlined 

within this report, be noted.  
 
236. Gypsy and Traveller Service: Proposed approach to the setting of fees 
and charges  
(Item 20) 
 

Pal Sandher (Head of Gypsy and Traveller Service) and Jayne Collier-Smith 

(Project Manager Gypsy and Traveller Service) were in attendance for this 

item.  

 

1. Mrs Hohler (Deputy Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory 

Services) introduced the report that presented Members with the latest 

developments in relation to the review of policies which supported the 

operation of the Council’s Gypsy and Traveller Service. 

 

2. Mrs Stewart (Director of Environment, Planning and Enforcement) advised 

the Committee that the report set out the proposed approach to the setting 

of fees and charges, which along with the Unauthorised Encampment 

Policy and Pitch Allocation and Site Management Policy, would be subject 

to consultation and would be brought back to the Committee in the New 

Year.  

Page 108Agenda Item 13



 

21 

 

3. It was RESOLVED that the proposed approach to the setting of fees and 

charges to enable full cost recovery, be noted.  

 
 
237. Work Programme  
(Item 21) 
 

It was RESOLVED that the Work Programme be noted, subject to the 

inclusion of the following items: 

 
(a) The Kent & Medway Energy and Low Emissions Strategy, action update - 

March 2020 

 

(b) Strategic Delivery Plan Monitoring – May 2020 

 
238. Highways Term Maintenance Contract - Position Paper  
(Item 22) 
 

Rob Clark (Contract and Commissioning support Manager) and Andrew 

Loosemore (Head of Highways Asset Management) were in attendance for 

this item.  

 

1. Mr Payne (Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport) introduced the 

report that set out the position of the Highway Term Maintenance Contract 

along with the work undertaken to date in order to progress the 

Commercial Services (CSKL) delivery option. Mr Payne informed the 

Committee that Kent Highways delivery model was due to expire on 31 

August 2020 and therefore a new delivery model was required. The four 

delivery options for the future provision of the services had been 

considered and this included: option 1 which was to extend the contract 

with Amey for a further year; option 2 which considered re-procurement of 

on a like-for-like basis; option 3 which explored the option to disaggregate 

the contract and procure smaller contract packages, of which the Council 

would take on the management and integration role; and option 4 which 

was to develop an alliance model between the Council and Commercial 

services which would sit under the Holding Company. Mr Payne informed 

the Committee that whilst option 4 was initially considered to be the 

preferred option, upon closer examination, including the assessment 

results of the PWC report, option 4 was not a viable alternative model on 

the basis that it failed to meet three requirements which posed an 

unacceptable  risk to KCC; financial viability, appropriateness and timing. 

In Summary, Mr Payne expressed that the preferred alternative model 

would therefore be option 3 which would involve the Highways Asset 

Management team undertaking a number of procurements for specific 

services and the advantage of such an option would be assurance in 

KCC’s proven ability to manage and deliver such a contract.  

Page 109 Agenda Item 13



 

22 

 

2. Officers responded to comments and questions as follows: 

 

(a) Mr Payne informed Members that whilst an alliance model was not 

considered to be a viable option for the Highways Term Maintenance 

contract, potential procurement roles would continue to be explored 

with Commercial Services.  Mr Payne assured Members that due 

diligence work would be carried out and that each contract would be 

tendered.  

 

(b) Mr Jones (Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste) assured 

the Committee that in recognition of the importance to deliver the 

Highway Term Maintenance contract and the impact that the 

contracting decision would have on the Highways Asset Management 

team, a Steering Board was established. The members of that Board 

consisted of the Head of Internal Audit, Corporate Finance and various 

internal organisations to ensure that all aspects were considered in the 

winder corporate context.   

 

(c) Mr Jones informed the Committee that an independent review was 

sought from PWC to ensure that KCC had incorporated and considered 

all potential risks. Mr Jones assured Members that the process of 

commissioning provided KCC with the level of confidence required to 

take forward the preferred model having undertaken the correct level of 

scrutiny and due diligence work. 

 

(d) Mr Jones addressed concerns around the disenfranchisement of staff, 

and said that of the Amey contingent, 150 to 160 members of staff 

would be operative level and that it was those operative members that 

would initially be transferred to undertake various services that KCC 

were looking to procure. This in turn would provide members with 

confidence in the continuity of their role within Kent. The next phase of 

work that needed to be undertaken included a staff engagement 

exercise. Mr Jones addressed concerns relating to Amey’s performance 

and assured Members that KCC had actively engaged with Amey 

around the rules of engagement going forward to reduce risk.   

 

3. It was RESOLVED that the report be noted.  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 110Agenda Item 13


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Dartford Joint Transportation Board held on 3 December 2019.
	6 Matters Arising
	Matters Arising report

	8 Fastrack
	F1 Fastrack Performance Management December 2019
	F1 page 2
	Fastrack Report p
	F2 Tunbridge Wells CE overview
	F3 Camera Enforcment requirements and agreement
	F4 KCC Fastrack Engagement - Meeting Summaries

	11 Joint Transportation Board : Constitutional Matters
	12 Road Works in the Borough of Dartford
	13 KCC - Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee

